
 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, August 1, 2013 
6:00 p.m. Regular Session 

 
 Location:  Community Meeting Room 

177 First Street West, Sonoma, CA 95476 
  

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 
everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Boerum  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 
 At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not 

appearing on the agenda. It is recommended that you keep your 
comments to three minutes or less. Under State Law, matters presented 
under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this 
time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to 
make comments at the time the item comes up for Board consideration. 
At all times please use the microphone. 

 

Boerum  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR  
A. Board Minutes 6.4.13; 6.6.13 
B. FC Minutes 5.28.13; 6.25.13 
C. GC Minutes 5.28, 13; 6.24.13 
D. QC Minutes 5.22.13; 6.26.13 
E. Extension of Labor Compliance Agreement 
F. Approved QC Policies 6.26.13; 7.24.13 
G. MEC Credentialing 5.22.13 revised; 6.26.13; 7.24.13 

Boerum Action 

4. SONOMA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
SERVICES HEALTH IMPROVEMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE PLAN PRESENTATION  

 

Scardaci/Lewis Inform 

5. SVH-MGH AFFILIATION AGREEMENT – 
 REVISED EXHIBIT A  
 

Boerum Action 

6. LANDMARK OPTION AGREEMENT/LEASE EASEMENT 
PURCHASE  

 

Boerum/Reid Action 

7. CITY OF SONOMA SOUTH LOT DEFERRED 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

Boerum/Hohorst Action 

8.  CEO INCENTIVE COMPENSATION GOALS FY14 
 

Nevis/Carruth Action 



 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

9.   JUNE 2013 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

Fogg/Reid Inform 

10.  JUNE 2013 ADMINISTATIVE REPORT 
 

Mather Inform 

11. OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

i.  Annual Meeting Assn. Calif. Healthcare Districts 
A. Chair Report (Boerum/Inform) 

ii.  Attendance at ACHD Board Meeting, 6.28.13 
iii.  Northern California Health Care Authority Status 
iv.  Visit of Assembly Member Marc Levine, 11.07.13 

   

i.  Community Funding/Charitable Giving Policy (Action) 
B. Governance Committee Report (Carruth/Hohorst) 

ii.  Board Legal Duties, Roles, Responsibilities, Limits (Action) 
iii.  Contracting Policy for Materials and Services (Action) 

 

 
C.  CEO Construction Committee Status Report (Coss/Inform) 

i.  QC Dashboard 2013 (Action) 
D. Quality Committee Report (Hirsch) 

 Inform/ 
Action 

12. ADJOURN 
 

Boerum  

 
 



 
3. 
 

CONSENT 
CALENDAR 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE 

DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES 
Tuesday, June 4, 2013 

Schantz Conference Room 
 

 

 
Board Members Present Board Members Absent Administrative Staff/Other Present 
Bill Boerum, Chair 
Kevin Carruth 
Peter Hohorst 
Sharon Nevins 
 

Jane Hirsch 
 

Kelly Mather, SVH President & CEO 
Rick Reid, SVH CFO 
Lee Domanico, MGH CEO 
David Cox, MGH CFO 
Gigi Betta, Board Clerk 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION 
CONCLUS

IONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-
UP/ 

RESPONSIB
LE PARTY 

MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the 
health of everyone in our community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that: 
SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate place of healing 
and known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve as the guide 
and indispensable link for our community’s health care journey. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER Boerum   
 5:00 p.m. 

 
  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION Boerum   
 No public comment. 

 
  

3. CLOSED SESSION: 
 A. Calif. Health & Safety Code § 32106

Boerum 
 – Trade 

Secrets Regarding Business Strategies. 

  

    
4. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION AND 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Boerum   

 No action taken.   



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION 
CONCLUS

IONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-
UP/ 

RESPONSIB
LE PARTY 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Boerum   
 At this time, members of the public may comment on 

any item not appearing on the agenda. It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to three 
minutes or less. Under State Law, matters presented 
under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by 
the Board at this time. For items appearing on the 
agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at 
the time the item comes up for Board consideration. At 
all times please use the microphone. 

No public comment.   

6. SVH/MGH AFFILIATION SAVINGS 
AND BENEFITS 

Domanico/Reid Inform  

 Mr. Domanico gave an overview of the savings and 
benefits to be realized through an affiliation between MGH 
and SVH. 
Mr. Reid spoke about two benefits that were not in the 
presentation.  They are Union Bank and the $5M line of 
credit, both a direct result of the affiliation with MGH.  
The insurance review, a requirement for the line of credit, 
resulted in additional property insurance for SVH.  The 
insurance includes (at no additional cost) HIPPA insurance 
with a $50,000 deductible. 
Mr. Reid went on the present specific examples of cost 
savings including: 

• opportunities for even more savings in IT 
• improved physician relationships and lowered 

recruitment costs (Prima) 
• North Bay initiatives like Palm Drive, Meritage, 

and WHA; and 
• other future initiatives including continued staff 

sharing, system identity and centralized IT. 
 

  

7. ADJOURN Boerum Inform  
 6:35 p.m. 

 
  

 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, June 6, 2013 
Community Meeting Room 

 

 

 
Board Members Present Board Members Absent Administrative Staff/Other Present 
Peter Hohorst, Acting Chair 
Sharon Nevins 
Jane Hirsch 
Kevin Carruth 
 

Bill Boerum, Chair 
 

Kelly Mather, President & CEO 
Dr. Robert Cohen , CMO 
Leslie Lovejoy, CNO 
Rick Reid, CFO 
Kevin Coss, Construction Committee Chair 
John Perez, Quality/Finance Committees 
Brenda Epperly, Quality Committee Member 
Dick Fogg, Finance Committee Chair 
Gigi Betta, Board Clerk 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and 

restore the health of everyone in our community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that: 
SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate place of 
healing and known for excellence in clinical quality.  We 
serve as the guide and indispensable link for our community’s 
health care journey. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Hohorst   
 Mr. Boerum was absent from the meeting and Mr. Hohorst 

served as acting Chair. 
6:03 p.m. 

  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION    

3. CLOSED SESSION:  Hohorst   

 A. Calif. Health & Safety Code § 
 54956.9(b)(3)(C)

 
 – Conference regarding 

 potential litigation without legal counsel. 

  

4. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION AND 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Hohorst   

 
 

No report.   

5. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Hohorst   

 At this time, members of the public may comment on No public comment.   



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
any item not appearing on the agenda. It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to three 
minutes or less. Under State Law, matters presented 
under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by 
the Board at this time. For items appearing on the 
agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at 
the time the item comes up for Board consideration. At 
all times please use the microphone. 

6.  CONSENT CALENDAR: Hohorst Action  

A. Special Board Minutes, 5.21.13 
B. Special Board Minutes, 5.7.13 
C. Regular Board Minutes, 5.2.13 
D. Finance Committee Minutes, 4.23.13 
E. Finance Committee Minutes, 3.26.13 
F. Governance Committee Minutes, 12.20.12 
G. Governance Committee Minutes, 3.4.13 
H. Quality Committee Minutes, 4.24.13 
I. Quality Committee Minutes, 3.27.13 
J. Medical Staff Appointments, 5.22.13 

 

  MOTION: 
By Carruth to 
approve all 
consent calendar 
items at once (A-
J), 2nd

All in favor. 
 by Nevins. 

7. CAPITAL CAMPAIGN UPDATE Mather Inform  

   . 

8. SVH-MGH AFFILIATION AGREEMENT 
ANNUAL REVIEW 

Mather/Reid Action  

 No motion needed to accept/approve the Affiliation 
Agreement as it automatically renews itself annually (unless 
terminated).  All were in favor of the acceptance of the 
Agreement with revisions and updates to Exhibit A (to be 
presented at Board meeting on August 1, 2013). 

 Motion not 
needed. 

9. SVH 2013 THREE-YEAR ROLLING STRATEGIC 
PLAN 

Mather Action  

 The next update on the Strategic Plan will be in November 
2013. 

 MOTION: 
By Hirsch and 2nd 
by Carruth.  All 
in favor. 

10. SVHCD 2014 OPERATING BUDGET Reid Action  

 Mr. Reid presented the same operating budget as he did on 
May 21, 2013.  There have been no changes to the budget 
since.  Ms. Hirsch moved to delete the last sentence on page 
9. 
 

 MOTION: 
By Carruth to 
approve 2014 
Operating Budget 
as amended, 2nd 



3 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
by Hirsch.  All in 
favor. 

11. APRIL 2013 FINANCIAL REPORT Reid Inform  

           

12. APRIL 2013 ADMINISTATIVE REPORT Mather Inform  

 • It is ten months into the year and the Hospital still 
reports a great year 

• Congratulations were extended  to Mr. Reid and both 
the SVH and MGH finance teams on completion of 
the 2014 Operating Budget.  

• The SVH Emergency Department continues to do a 
great job from the patient’s perspective and will only 
improve with the completion of new construction. 

• A major project to upgrade the SVH Lobby and 
Laboratory areas  is planned for next year. 

• Ms. Mather celebrates and congratulates the SVH 
Community on a total of 1,700 volunteer hours. 

• Bob Kenney the new SVH marketing representative, 
together with Michelle Donaldson and Dawn 
Kuwahara will present the marketing  plan at the 
Board meeting on August 1, 2013. 

• Melissa Evans, RN, in the Skilled Nursing Facility 
was awarded a bronze medal which will be presented 
in October 2013. 

  

13. OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS Hohorst, Nevins, Hirsch, Lovejoy, Carruth, Coss Inform/Action  

i.July 2013 Regular District Board Meeting Status 
A. Chair Report (Boerum) 

ii.Assoc. of Calif. HealthCare Districts Annual Meeting 

i.Annual Quality and Risk Evaluation Report 
B. Quality Committee Report (Nevins/Lovejoy) 

ii.External Report Card 
iii.Johns Hopkins Recognition and CMS Grant  

i.CEO Annual Evaluation Procedure 
C. Governance Committee Report (Carruth/Hohorst) 

ii.Establishment of CEO Objectives and Committee 
iii.Board Legislative and Regulatory Policy Positions 
iv.Board Legal Duties/Roles & Limits on Power 
v.MOU between SVHCD/SVH Foundation 

D. Audit Committee Report (Hohorst) 

 
E. Construction Committee Report (Coss) 

Mr. Hohorst announced that the SVH Board of Director’s 
meeting for July 11, 2013 is cancelled.  The next meeting of 
the Board will be August 1, 2013. 
 

• Moved, 2nd and approved, Policy Concerning CEO 
Annual Evaluation Procedure and Schedule (Ci) with 
amendment to change date from July to June and to 
add 6 direct reports to list of individuals who will 
complete the evaluation survey (section 5).  The 6 
direct reports are CHRO, CMO, CFO, CNO, Dawn 
Kuwahara and Michelle Donaldson 

Governance Committee Report: 

• Moved, 2nd and approved, Policy Concerning 
Establishment of Annual Objectives (Cii) 

• Moved, 2nd and approved, the establishment of a 
Board Advisory Committee to evaluate the 
performance of the CEO during the prior fiscal year 

 MOTION: to 
approve (Bi) and 
(Bii) by Carruth 
and 2nd

 

 Hohorst.  
All in favor. 

MOTION to 
approve (Ci) 
as amended by 
Nevins 2nd

 

 by 
Hirsch.  All in 
favor. 

MOTION to 
approve (Cii) by 
Hirsch and 2nd by 
Nevins.  All in 



4 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
and to prepare a CEO Evaluation Report (Ci) 

• Moved, 2nd and approved, the appointment of Bill 
Boerum and Jane Hirsch to serve on the Board 
Advisory Committee to evaluate the performance of 
the CEO during the prior fiscal year and to prepare a 
CEO Evaluation Report (Ci) 

• Moved, 2nd and approved, the establishment of a 
Board Advisory Committee to work with the CEO to 
develop the annual CEO objectives.  Objectives to 
be finalized by the August 1 Board meeting (Cii) 

• Moved, 2nd and approved, the appointment of 
Sharon Nevins and Kevin Carruth to serve on the 
Board Advisory Committee to work with the CEO to 
develop the annual CEO objectives (Cii) 

• Board Legal Duties/Roles & Limits on Power (Civ) 
was an inform only item.  Mr. Hohorst moved to 
edit page 3 and change two to one.  This item will be 
brought back to the next Board meeting on August 1. 

• Regarding the MOU between MGH/SVH (Cv), Mr. 
Hohorst moved to delete “after approval by District 
Board” on page 3.  Note: the MOU renews itself 
automatically on June 30 of each year (unless 
terminated).   

 

• AC met on May 28, 2013 and approved Moss 
Adams as the audit firm for this year.  Moss Adams 
was used last year and they understand the SVH-
Prima relationship which will save the Hospital both 
time and money. 

Audit Committee Report: 

• There remains one (1) open position on the Audit 
Committee.  Two applications for this position have 
been received and one candidate will be appointed at 
the Board Meeting on September 5, 2013. 

 

favor. 
 
MOTION to 
approve (Ciii) by 
Hirsch and 2nd

 

 by 
Nevins.  All in 
favor. 

MOTION to 
approve(Cv) as 
amended  
by Carruth and 
2nd

All in favor. 
 by Hirsch. 

14. HIPPA BREACH UPDATE Reid Inform  

 Mr. Reid gave a brief update on the Hospital’s HIPPA Breach 
including the preventative plans that have been put in place. 

  

15. ADJOURN Hohorst   

 7:19 p.m.   
 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2013 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
 
Board Members Present cont. Administrative Staff/ Other Present Absent 
Dick Fogg, Chair 
Sharon Nevins 
Peter Hohorst 
Steve Barclay 
Richard Conley 

Mary Smith 
Phil Woodward 
Subhash Mishra, MD 
Shari Glago 
 

Rick Reid, CFO 
Jeannette Tarver, Controller 
Gigi Betta, Board Clerk 
Sam McCandless 
Norman Gilroy 
 

Kelly Mather 
Keith Chamberlin M.D. 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW
-UP 

MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the health of 
everyone in our community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that SVH will be a nationally recognized, 
compassionate place of healing known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve 
as the guide and indispensable link in our community members’ health care journey. 

  

1.  CALL TO ORDER Dick Fogg   

 Ms. Mather and Dr. Chamberlin were absent from the meeting. 
5:06 PM 

  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Dick Fogg   

 No public comment. 
 

  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR Dick Fogg Action  

       A.  FC Minutes 04.23.13  MOTION to approve 
(A) by Nevins, second 
by Conley.  All in 
favor. 

 

4. EDUCATION SESSION ON 
ACCOUNTABLE CARE 
ORGANIZATION (ACO) 

Glago Inform  

 In the first part of the presentation, Ms. Glago spoke in broad terms about ACOs and 
models of accountability.  Most important is the alignment of incentives and 

  



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW
-UP 

definition of the population served.  Accurate measurements and cost savings 
figures are dependent on population definition. 
In the second part of the presentation, Ms Glago gave specific examples taken from 
several of the Blue Cross ACO models. 

5. RECOMMENDATION TO SVHCD 
BOARD TO APPROVE THE 2014 
OPERATING BUDGET 

Rick Reid Action  

 The Committee consensus is that the 2014 budget is both conservative and fair 
furthermore, Committee members are comfortable with the budget as presented.  
The only major issue of any concern is IT expense.  IT costs will continue to 
increase in future. 
Mr. Barclay requested that there be a forecast of the fiscal year two-years in advance 
(instead of one year) so that the Committee can get in front of next fiscal year even 
early. 

MOTION to approve 
the 2014 Operating 
Budget by Barclay 
second by Nevins.  All 
in favor 

 

6. UPDATES Rick Reid   

 Over the past month, Mr. Reid and the SVH finance department have been focused 
on the 2014 Operating Budget and now set their sights on the Audit, which will run 
from May through October 2013. 
Mr. Conley asked about the HIPPA breach, news of which was released in the Press 
today.  Mr. Reid explained the circumstances around the breach and exactly what 
took place.  The Hospital has since disclosed to the State and all patients, both 
privately and publicly.  Furthermore, steps have been taken to ensure that such an 
event cannot occur again.  Mr. Reid added that the Hospital is insured up to $2 
million. 

  

7. APRIL 2013 FINANCIALS Rick Reid   

 Page 28 of the April Financials was updated after the Agenda Package was 
electronically distributed.  The corrected page was distributed at the meeting. 

  

8. PROJECTED CASH FLOWS Rick Reid   

 Lines 39-41 of the Projected Cash Flows are under revision and will be presented 
with greater clarity at the next Finance Committee meeting.   
Mr. Woodward asked why last month’s projected cash flow does not equal this 
month’s actual figures.  Mr. Reid explained that differences are due to Napa State 
Hospital payments. 

  

9. CLOSING COMMENTS/ADJOURN Dick Fogg 
6:30 PM 

  

 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2013 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
 
Board Members Present cont. Administrative Staff/ Other Present Absent 
Dick Fogg, Chair 
Sharon Nevins 
Peter Hohorst 
Steve Barclay 
Richard Conley 

Mary Smith 
Phil Woodward 
Subhash Mishra, M.D. 
Shari Glago 
Keith Chamberlin M.D. (call-in) 
 

Rick Reid, CFO 
Robert Cohen, M.D., CMO 
Jeannette Tarver, Controller 
Sam McCandless, Community Member 
Gigi Betta, Board Clerk 
Kelly Mather (call-in) 
Leslie Lovejoy (call-in) 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW
-UP 

MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the health of everyone 
in our community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate 
place of healing known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve as the guide and 
indispensable link in our community members’ health care journey. 

  

1.  CALL TO ORDER Dick Fogg   

 5:00 PM   
2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Dick Fogg   

 No public comment.   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR Dick Fogg Action  

       A.  FC Minutes 05.28.13  MOTION to approve 
(A) by Hohorst, 2nd

 
 by 

Nevins.  All in favor. 
4. RAC UPDATE Lovejoy/Cohen/ 

Reid 
Inform  

 Dr. Cohen explained how SVH physicians decide whether to “admit” or “observe” a 
patient, gave several examples and clarified many questions from the Committee. 
Mr. Reid defined “RAC” and gave an overview on how the process works.  Mr. Reid 
then reviewed the handout, Reducing RAC Audits and Denials Project, in Ms. 

  



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTIONS FOLLOW
-UP 

Lovejoy’s absence.  SVH has hired EHR to scrutinize observation patients and to assist 
with RAC appeals (SVH wants to be very aggressive in the appeals process). 
 

5. EDUCATIONAL SESSION Glago Inform  

 No topic presented this meeting.   

6. UPDATES Rick Reid Inform  

 The attorney representing SVH in the current HIPPA class action law suit, feels that 
SVH has a HIPPA exposure not disclosure issue.  Mr. Reid reviewed the terms and 
conditions of the legal representation. 
Pledge loan update:  SVH is required to have new pledge documentation from the 
Nelsons to be able to borrow against that amount.  Hospital Administration is in the 
process of collecting this documentation.  Note: come September 2013, SVH will no 
longer be able to borrow against pledges. 

  

7. MAY 2013 FINANCIALS Rick Reid Inform  

 Mr. Reid reviewed May 2013 Financials with special attention to explained the specific 
RAC impact for the month of May. (past narrative here) 

  

8. PROJECTED HOSPITAL AND 
BUILDING PROJECT CASH 
FLOWS 

Rick Reid Inform   

 SVH is experiencing slower payments from insurance companies.  On a regular basis, 
Ms. Mather and Mr. Reid review and analyze the Hospital’s cash situation (flow) to 
determine if any action is required.  
The four sections of the cash flow summary page, (page 30 of agenda package) were 
reviewed.  This data is in direct response to a request from the Committee at a previous 
meeting. 

  

9. CLOSING COMMENTS/ADJOURN Fogg 
6:50 PM 

  

 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, May 28, 2013 
Solarium Conference Room/K. Mather’s Office 

 

 
Committee Members Present Committee Members Absent Administrative Staff Present 
Kevin Carruth, Chair 
Peter Hohorst  

  

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of everyone in our 

community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that:  SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate place 
of healing and known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve as the guide and 
indispensable link for our community’s health care journey. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER Called to order 8:30 AM 
Minutes taken by Mr. Hohorst and Mr. Carruth. 
 

  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any 
item not appearing on the agenda. It is recommended that 
you keep your comments to three minutes or less. Under 
State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be 
discussed or acted upon by the Committee at this time. For 
items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to 
make comments at the time the item comes up for 
Committee consideration.  

There were no public comments   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 A.  GC Meeting Minutes, 4.23.13 

 MOTION to approve 
by Hohorst. All in 
favor 

 

    
4.  MEMORANDUM OF 
 UNDERSTANDING AND GIFT 
 ACCEPTANCE POLICY WITH 
 SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL 
 FOUNDATION 

There was a discussion about a number of provisions in the MOU and 
GAP. 
 

Motion by Carruth to 
have Hohorst write up 
the item for the 
presentation to the 
Board for their action 
on June 6th.

Hohorst to write 
up for Board 
meeting action. 

 All in 
favor 

    
5. CEO EVALUATION AND 

OBJECTIVE SETTING TIME LINE 
 

  Hohorst to 
present at June 
Board meeting. 



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
 
 
 
 

 Motion by Carruth to 
present at June 6th

 

 
Board meeting for 
approval.  All in favor. 

 

6. LEGISLATION 
 1. SB 785-Design-Built Authority for  
  SCVHD 
 2. Development of Board Policy  
  Positions 
 

The value of continuing authorization of Design Build authority was 
discussed. SB 785 would provide this authorization  
Five policy points, which would give the CEO guidance on supporting 
legislative direction were discussed  

Moved by Hohorst to 
support SB 785. All 
were in favor. 
Moved by Hohorst 
that Carruth would 
write up the five 
points for presentation 
to the Board at the 
June meeting for 
approval. All in favor 

Carruth to write 
up for the June 
Board meeting for 
action. 

    

7. ROLE CLARIFICATIONS 
1. Board Members 
2. Board Chairman 
3. Committee Members 

 

Suggested amendments to the Board Policy on Board Member and Board 
Chair duties, roles and responsibilities were reviewed. 
 
A suggested Policy for duties, roles and responsibilities for Board 
Committee members was reviewed and discussed 

Moved by Carruth that 
the suggested 
amendments be 
presented to the Board 
for review at the June 
Board meeting. All in 
favor 
Moved by Hohorst 
that a policy regarding 
committee members 
be dropped since we 
have committee 
charters. All in favor. 

Carruth to write 
up and present to 
the June Board 
meeting for action 
at the following 
Board meeting. 

    

8. PROCUREMENT POLICY 
1. Public Works 
2. Goods and Services 

The Procurement Policies were discussed and it was agreed that they are 
not yet ready to bring to the Board for action and the GC will continue to 
work on them.  This should be placed on the next GC meeting agenda. 

  

    

9.   SUCCESSION PLANNING 
1. Board Committee members 
2. CEO “C-Suite” Plan 

Succession Planning is an item for the GC to address in the future.   Motion by Carruth to 
put forward the issue 
until later this year or 
next.  All in favor 

 

    

10. STRATEGIC PLAN AND ANNUAL 
BUDGET TIME LINES  

It was agreed that the policy template used for the CEO objective setting 
policy and the CEO evaluation policy was a good model.  It was also 

Motion by Hohorst to 
use the policy 

GC Chair 



3 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
 agreed to that a request be made to Sharon Nevins to work with the CEO 

to translate this year’s process and schedule into this policy template and 
processed by the GC at a later date 

template from the 
CEO evaluation and to 
request that S. Nevins 
work with the CEO to 
document this year’s 
process and schedule 
and the GC will 
convert it to a policy 
statement for Board 
action.  All in favor 

    

11. BOARD ORIENTATION POLICY 
1. SVHC District’s Brown Act lawsuit 
2. List of books for new members 
3. List magazine subscriptions for Board 
4. Description of MGH and Palm Drive 
5. Outline 1st

6. Outline process by which CEO links 
new Board Members with SVH Staff 

 Meeting for New Member 

7. Schedule for completion/adoption by 
Board 

The items were all seen as worthy of including in the Board Orientation 
items listed in the agenda in the package being developed.  It was also 
agreed that the work on this should wait until later in the year when Paula 
Davis has more time to work on this issue with the GC because she is 
splitting her time with Palm Drive Hospital. There is no time crisis since 
the next election is about 16n months away.  The GC will determine when 
to place this back on the GC agenda and to invite Jane Hirsch to make 
suggestions based on her experience with the current orientation package. 
 

Motion by Carruth to 
include all listed items 
in the Orientation 
Program and to put off 
further work until 
Paula Davis available. 
All in favor. 

The GC chair will 
place it back on 
the GC agenda at 
a later date, 
probably in 2013. 

    

12. BOARD POLICY ON COMMUNITY 
HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND 
ANNUAL COMMUNITY BENEFITS 

Kevin Carruth said this requirement is not applicable to SVH and the 
District per Kelly Mather so it was not discussed and there is no plan for 
further action by the GC 

  

    

13. TRANSPARENCY 
 

Transparency is an item for the GC to address in the future.   Motion by Carruth to 
place this item onto a 
list of issues for 
consideration later this 
year or next. All in 
favor 

 

    

14. INTEGRATION OF BOARD, 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND MEDICAL 
STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

 

This issue is an item for the GC to address in the future.   Motion by Carruth to 
place this item onto a 
list of issues for 
consideration later this 
year or next. All in 
favor 

 

    



4 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
15. CLOSING COMMENTS/ADJOURN 10:00 AM   
 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, June 24, 2013 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
Committee Members Present Committee Members Absent Administrative Staff Present 
Kevin Carruth, Chair 
Peter Hohorst  

  

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of everyone in our 

community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that:  SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate place 
of healing and known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve as the guide and 
indispensable link for our community’s health care journey. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 8:30 AM   
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any 
item not appearing on the agenda. It is recommended that 
you keep your comments to three minutes or less. Under 
State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be 
discussed or acted upon by the Committee at this time. For 
items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to 
make comments at the time the item comes up for 
Committee consideration.  

   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 A.  GC Meeting Minutes, 5.28.13 

 MOTION to approve 
GC Minutes from 
5.28.13 as amended 
by Carruth; 2nd

 

 by 
Hohorst.  All in favor. 

    

8. PROCUREMENT POLICY 
1. Public Works 
2. Goods and Services 

The discussion centered on Goods and Services.  Mr. Hohorst will prepare 
issues discussed and bring them back to the next Governance Committee 
meeting on Monday, July 22, 2013 8:30AM. 

  

    

15. CLOSING COMMENTS/ADJOURN For the remainder of 2013, GC meetings will occur monthly on the 
Monday prior to the regularly scheduled Finance Committee meetings.   

1. 2013 Work plan 
Proposed agenda Items for July 22: 

2. Transparency Accreditation 
3. JOC 
4. Procurement: a) goods/services b) public works c) scope. 

 The Board Clerk 
will send out a 
revised 2013 
SVH Committee 
Meeting Schedule 
to include the 
2013 GC meeting 



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
 
Adjourn 10:30 AM 

dates. 

 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

QUALITY COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, May 22, 2013 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
Committee Members Present Committee Members Absent Community Members Administrative Staff Present 
Sharon Nevins, Chair 
Dr. Paul Amara 
John Perez 
Joel Hoffman 
Leslie Lovejoy 
Brenda Epperly 
Dr. Jerome Smith 
Dr. Howard Eisenstark 
Dr. Jerome Smith 
Susan Idell 

Jane Hirsch 
Dr. Robert Cohen, CMO 
 

 Mark Kobe 
Gigi Betta, Board Clerk 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the 

health of everyone in our community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that SVH will be a nationally 
recognized, compassionate place of healing known for excellence in 
clinical quality.  We serve as the guide and indispensable link in our 
community members’ health care journey. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Nevins   

 5:03 PM 
Ms. Nevins proposed (and it was widely accepted) that in future QC 
Agenda Packages and any other materials for meetings, will be 
brought by the Committee Members (either on an electronic device 
or as a hardcopy).  The Board Clerk will bring only a few hardcopies 
for distribution.  This in an effort to go green and reduce paper 
waste. 
Further, it was requested the Board Clerk REMIND Committee 
Members to bring their own meeting materials before each meeting. 

  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT Nevins   
At this time, members of the public may comment 
on any item not appearing on the agenda. It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to 
three minutes or less. Under State Law, matters 
presented under this item cannot be discussed or 
acted upon by the Committee at this time. For 

No public comment.   



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
items appearing on the agenda, the public will be 
invited to make comments at the time the item 
comes up for Committee consideration.  
3. CONSENT CALENDAR Nevins Inform/action  

A. QC Meeting Minutes, 1.23.13 
B. QC Meeting Minutes, 2.27.13 

 

 MOTION by Perez to 
approve both A&B and 
second by Amara.  All 
in favor and none 
opposed. 
 
 

 

4. QUALITY INDICATORS 
SUBCOMMITTEE 

Perez 
 

Inform/action  

 Mr. Perez on behalf of the Quality Indicators Subcommittee, 
presented in two parts: Part I: BOARD QULAITY COMMITTEE 
DASHBOARD 2013 and Part II: QUALITY REPORT CARD. 
 
Formatting, wording, errors and missing data discussed in an effort 
to find the best way to represent data overall with an eye to 
educating public and SVH Board of Directors. 
 

There was no official Motion or a Second however, it was decided 
that Part I would be revised and brought back to the next QC 
meeting in June.  It will not go to the Board at this time. 

Part I Decisions: 

There was no official Motion or a Second however, Part II was 
approved by all and it was agreed that the next steps are to present it 
to the Board for approval to post it on the SVH website. 

Part II Decisions: 

 

  

5. QUALITY REPORT Lovejoy Inform  

 Ms. Lovejoy presented a lengthy report this month mainly due to the 
mock survey and the (relatively minor) issues the survey uncovered.  
Ms. Lovejoy gave the Quality Report and talked about department 
priorities for May 2013.  Priorities included regulatory compliance, 
departmental changes and the Good Catch Program. 
The Committee was very impressed with the Good Catch Program, a 
program which publicly recognizes staff members, issues them a 
thank you letter signed by the CEO and the Chairman of the Board, 
and awards a pewter pin in the shape of a catcher’s mitt.  The 
Committee suggested that this Program be presented at the next 
Regular Board meeting. 

  



3 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
6. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 

IMPROVEMENT AND RISK MGMT 
PROGRAM EVALUATION REPORTS 

Lovejoy Inform  

 Ms. Lovejoy talked about the Performance Improvement Plan and 
the Risk Management Program with an accompanying PowerPoint 
presentation.   
It was decided that the Risk Management Report will continue to be 
treated as a confidential document. 
Although these reports were not presented as official action items, 
there was an unofficial motion by Dr. Amara and a 2nd

 

 by Mr. Perez 
to approve the reports. 

 

7. CLOSING COMMENTS Nevins   

 The SVH Quality Committee will immediately advise the Medical 
Staff know whenever a Regular SVH Board Meeting is cancelled or 
not planned for any given month.  Dr. Smith requested a 60-90 day 
advance notice if possible. 
 

.  

8. UPON ADJOURNMENTOF THE 
REGULAR OPEN SESSION 

Nevins   

 Opening of closed session. 
 

  

9. CLOSED SESSION Smith/Amara Inform/action  

 Medical Staff Credentialing & Peer Review Report was presented by 
Dr. Smith and approved by the Committee. 
There is one item that requires expedition from the SVH Board 
Chairman, Bill Boerum.  Nancy Iredale, Medical Staff Assistant will 
contact Mr. Boerum for the expedition in email format (done on 
5/24/13). 

  

10.  REPORT OF CLOSED 
SESSION/ADJOURN 

Nevins   

 6:35PM 
 

  

 



1 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

QUALITY COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, June 26, 2013 
Schantz Conference Room 

 

 
Committee Members Present Committee Members Absent Community Members Administrative Staff Present 
Sharon Nevins, Chair 
John Perez 
Leslie Lovejoy (call-in) 
Dr. Howard Eisenstark 
Susan Idell 
Dr. Robert Cohen, CMO 
Jane Hirsch 
Joel Hoffman 
Dr. Paul Amara 
Dr. Jerome Smith 
 

Brenda Epperly 
 
 

 Mark Kobe 
Courtney McMahon 
Gigi Betta, Board Clerk 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the health of everyone 

in our community. 
The vision of the SVHCD is that SVH will be a nationally recognized, compassionate 
place of healing known for excellence in clinical quality.  We serve as the guide and 
indispensable link in our community members’ health care journey. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Nevins   

 5:02 PM 
 

  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT Nevins   
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item 
not appearing on the agenda. It is recommended that you keep 
your comments to three minutes or less. Under State Law, 
matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or 
acted upon by the Committee at this time. For items appearing 
on the agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at 
the time the item comes up for Committee consideration.  

No public comment.   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR Nevins Inform/action  

A. QC Meeting Minutes, 5.22.13 Correction to 5/22 Minutes: Dr. Jerome Smith’s name appears  twice 
under Present. 

MOTION: by 
Eisenstark to approve 
(A) as amended and 2nd

 

 
by Perez. All in favor. 

4. ANNUAL INFECTION CONTROL 
REPORT 

McMahon Inform  



2 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
 Ms. McMahon presented the Annual Infection Control Board Report 

including 2013 goals, historical rates of infection, prevention 
methodology, and the Antimicrobial Stewardship Program (ASP). 

  

5. QUALITY REPORT AND BUILDING 
ACTIVATION TIMELINE 

Lovejoy 
 

Inform  

 Ms. Lovejoy presented the Quality Report for May 2013 which 
included the building activation project, utilization management and 
clerical informatics. 

  

6.  ORGANIZATIONAL MATERIALS 
MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES 

Lovejoy Inform/Action  

 Approved as amended.  Ms. Lovejoy will correct the spelling on Mr. 
Boerum’s name on the signature page. 

MOTION: by Hirsch 
and 2nd

 
 by Eisenstark to 

approve #6 as 
amended. All in favor. 

7. REPORT FROM QUALITY 
INDICATIORS SUBCOMMITTEE AND 
DASHBOARD 

Hirsch Inform  

 Dr. Eisenstark suggested using a “rolling” quarterly format for the 
Dashboard and it was the general consensus of the group to do so.  
Ms. Lovejoy will reformat the data in the suggested way. 
 
Dr. Cohen comments that item 2.a. ED Patient Performance, is a 
benchmark (25 minutes) set by Valley Emergency Physicians and 
the national benchmark is 30 minutes.  So SVH performs above the 
national average.  

  

8. CLOSING COMMENTS Nevins   

    

9. ADJOURN Nevins   

 6:01 .  

10. UPON ADJOURNMENTOF THE 
REGULAR OPEN SESSION 

Nevins   

    

11. CLOSED SESSION Smith/Amara Inform/action  

    

12.  REPORT OF CLOSED 
SESSION/ADJOURN 

Nevins 
 

  



3 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION CONCLUSIONS/ 
ACTION 

FOLLOW-UP/ 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTY 
 1. May 22 revised - approval contingent on one PPD by next 

QC meeting on July 24. 
2. June 26 - approved contingent on one PPD by next QC 

meeting on July 24.  There was on emergency expedition” 
by Hirsch and Nevins. 

 
NOTE: Requested that the Board Clerk put Board Members’ names 
on credentialing documentation at all future Board meetings and 
collect documentation at the end of the meeting. 
 
6:15 PM 

  

 



 
Meeting Date:  August 1, 2013 

Prepared by:  Peter Hohorst, Board Member 

Agenda Item Title:   Extension of Professional Services Agreement 

Recommendation:  

That the existing Labor Compliance Program Contract with Labor Compliance 
Specialists that is due to expire on August 4th, 2013 be extended for three months to 
November 4th

Background and Reasoning: 

, 2013 

The District is required under Health and Safety Code 32132,5 and Public Contract 
code 20133 to pay prevailing wages for the GO Bond project and to have proof that 
prevailing wages have been paid. In August, 2011, the District contracted with Labor 
Compliance Specialists for two years to monitor and review all wages paid with GO 
Bond funds in order to ensure that prevailing wages had been paid. At the time it was 
expected that the project would be completed during the two year period.  

To date there have been no challenges to the payments made to any of the workers 
engaged on the project. 

The present target for substantial completion of the project is October 25, 2013. An 
extension of the present contract for three months will extend the service until the 
project is completed. 

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 

Probably none, but the possibility exists of a problem and the remedy is simple 

Financial Impact: 

Cost of 3 months service $10,100 

Selection Process: 

Extension of existing professional service agreement 

Attachments:  

Copy of original agreement 



SFCA_386114.1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

between 

Sonoma Valley Hospital 

And 
Labor Compliance Specialists, Inc. 

 
1. This AGREEMENT is made on ______________________, between Sonoma Valley 

Hospital, hereinafter called “SVH,” and Labor Compliance Specialists, Inc., hereinafter 
called “Consultant”, to furnish certain services with regard to the facility upgrade project 
under a contract with Otto Construction Inc., hereinafter called “Project”, upon the 
following terms and conditions: 

I. CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Consultant shall furnish the service set forth and described in the Scope of Work 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. 

II. TERM 

A. Term of Agreement. 

The period of performance shall be from August 4, 2011, to August 4, 2013, and 
may be extended by the mutual agreement of SVH and Consultant. No extension 
of the period of performance of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing 
and executed by SVH and Consultant. 

B. SVH -Termination for Cause. 

If SVH determines that Consultant has failed to perform in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, SVH may terminate all or part of the 
Agreement for cause. This termination shall become effective if Consultant does 
not cure its failure to perform within 10 days (or more, if authorized in writing by 
SVH) after receipt of a notice of intention to terminate from SVH specifying the 
failure in performance. 

C. SVH -Termination for Convenience. 

SVH may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time upon written 
notice to Consultant. Upon such termination Consultant shall immediately cease 
work and SVH shall promptly pay Consultant for all amounts then due and 
payable under this Agreement. Consultant shall not be entitled to any 
compensation for lost profit for work not performed. 

 



2 
SFCA_386114.1 

 

D. Consultant-Initiated Termination. 

Consultant may terminate this Agreement for cause if SVH fails to cure a material 
default in performance within a period of 30 days, or such longer period as 
Consultant may allow, after receipt from Consultant of a written termination 
notice specifying the default in performance; provided, however, that a good faith 
dispute between Consultant and SVH regarding the performance of Consultant’s 
work hereunder, and any withholding of payment related to such dispute, shall not 
constitute grounds for Consultant to terminate this Agreement. In the event of 
termination for cause by Consultant, SVH will pay Consultant in accordance with 
paragraph IV.B. 

III. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Independent Contractor. 

Consultant shall perform the services hereunder as an independent contractor and 
not as an agent or employee of SVH. Nothing in this Agreement should be 
construed to create a partnership, joint venture, or employer-employee 
relationship. Consultant is not the agent of SVH and is not authorized to make any 
representation, contract, or commitment on behalf of SVH unless specifically 
authorized to do so in writing signed by an officer of SVH. Consultant shall 
assume full and sole responsibility for the payment of all compensation and 
expenses of its employees and agents, including without limitation, all taxes 
imposed by any federal, state or local taxing authority on all compensation under 
this Agreement; unemployment insurance; social security and other applicable 
employee withholdings. Consultant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless SVH against any costs, expenses, damages, liability or claim associated 
with the compensation and expense of its employees, subcontractors or agents. 

B. Consultant Hiring. 

Consultant shall not hire any officer or employee of SVH to perform any service 
covered by this Agreement. This provision shall survive for one (1) year after the 
expiration of the Term of this Agreement. 

C. Subconsultants. 

Consultant shall cooperate with other professionals, consultants, contractors, 
subcontractors and independent contractors employed by SVH in the production 
of other work related to its services. Subject to approval by SVH, Consultant shall 
contract for or employ, at its expense, such professional subconsultants as 
Consultant deems necessary for the completion of the services. Consultant may 
hire the services of subconsultants with SVH’s approval in place of or in addition 
to those employed or retained by Consultant. Consultant is as responsible for the 
performance of its subconsultants as it would be if it had rendered these services 



3 
SFCA_386114.1 

itself. Nothing in the foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship 
between SVH and the professionals employed by Consultant under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. Consultant is solely responsible for payment of any 
subconsultants. 

D. Legal and Regulatory Compliance. 

Consultant shall perform all services and prepare all work product in compliance 
with the applicable requirements of laws, codes, rules, regulations, ordinances, 
and standards governing the scope of Consultant’s services hereunder. 

E. Ownership and Use of Work Product. 

Drawings, documents, reports, surveys, estimates, field notes, calculations, 
renderings, exhibits, models, prints, and photographs, reproducible copies on 
linen or mylar of maps, and other materials prepared and furnished by Consultant 
hereunder shall be and shall remain the property of SVH. 

In the event of Agreement termination by either party for any reason, as provided 
under this Agreement, SVH will have the right to receive, and Consultant shall 
promptly provide to SVH, all drawings, documents, reports, surveys, renderings, 
exhibits, models, prints, and photographs, and other materials prepared by 
Consultant for the services under this Agreement.  In the event of termination, and 
any dispute regarding the amount to be paid under this Agreement not 
withstanding, SVH retains the right to receive and use any such documents or 
materials. 

F. Consultant’s Accounting Records. 

All books and records relating to this Agreement shall be maintained in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. SVH or SVH’s 
authorized representative shall have access to and the right to audit and the right 
to copy all of Consultant’s books and records as they relate to this Agreement.  
Consultant records shall include but not be limited to accounting records (hard 
copy, as well as computer readable data if it can be made available); contracts; 
payroll records; subconsultant agreements; vendor agreements; purchase orders; 
leases; original estimates; estimating work sheets; correspondence; receipts; 
memoranda; and any other supporting evidence deemed necessary to substantiate 
charges under this Agreement. All such books and records shall be preserved for a 
period of at least three (3) years from the date of Final Payment under this 
Agreement. 

G. Conflict of Interest. 

Consultant represents and warrants that to the best of its knowledge, no actual or 
potential conflict of interest exists between Consultant’s family, business, or 
financial interests (“Consultant’s interests”) on the one hand, and the interests of 
SVH on the other hand, that may affect Consultant’s faithful and diligent 



4 
SFCA_386114.1 

performance of the services to be rendered by Consultant hereunder. If after the 
date hereof Consultant becomes aware of circumstances which evidence an actual 
or potential conflict of interest as described above, Consultant shall promptly and 
fully disclose such circumstances to SVH. 

H. Successors and Assigns. 

If Consultant transacts business as an individual, upon Consultant’s death or 
incapacitation, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of such 
event. If so terminated SVH shall pay Consultant or Consultant’s estate the 
prorated unpaid compensation due under Article IV for any services rendered 
prior to termination. 

If Consultant is comprised of two or more individuals, or is a partnership, 
corporation or other entity, and any Principal (as defined below) dies or becomes 
incapacitated, either Consultant or SVH may terminate this Agreement upon 
written notice to the other party.  If the parties do not terminate this Agreement 
within thirty days after such event, SVH will make payments to those continuing 
as though there had been no death or incapacitation; SVH will not be obliged to 
take any account of the person who died or became incapacitated or to make any 
payment to this person or this person’s estate. “Principal” for purposes hereof 
shall mean any individual, partner, shareholder, manager or officer who, at or 
immediately prior to the relevant time, provides or provided services at a 
supervisory or principal level to SVH on behalf of Consultant hereunder. 

As this Agreement is for the professional services of Consultant, Consultant shall 
not delegate responsibility for rendition of such professional services to any other 
party without the prior written consent of SVH, which consent may be granted or 
withheld in the sole discretion of SVH. Consultant shall not assign any monies 
due or to become due hereunder without the prior written consent and approval of 
SVH. 

SVH shall have the absolute right to assign all benefits of this Agreement to any 
organization associated with SVH, or to any other financially responsible 
organization upon such organization’s agreement to assume and perform the 
unperformed obligations of SVH hereunder. 

Except as provided in this Section III.H, this Agreement shall be binding upon 
SVH and Consultant and their respective successors and assigns. 

I. Information Furnished by SVH. 

If required for the performance of Consultant’s services, SVH will furnish 
information, surveys, reports, as-builts, and other materials in its possession at 
SVH’s expense. SVH shall, at Consultant’s request, provide topographical maps 
of adjacent areas, as-built drawings of existing utilities and structures, existing 
photogrammetric surveys of adjacent areas, and all other readily available 



5 
SFCA_386114.1 

pertinent data as may be determined by SVH to be necessary. Consultant shall 
review and become familiar with any such information provided by SVH. 

IV. COMPENSATION 

A. Payment During Term. 

SVH will have the right to withhold payment from Consultant for any 
unsatisfactory service until such time service is performed satisfactorily.  SVH 
will compensate Consultant for the scope of services provided in accordance with 
this Agreement, computed as follows: 

1. Compensation for the scope of work set forth in Exhibit A shall not 
exceed a maximum of $81,450.00. This maximum compensation may be 
increased only with the prior written approval of SVH. 

2. All fees shall be computed in accordance with Consultant Fee Schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. Each monthly fee shall be for the Labor 
Compliance Program services rendered during that month. 

3. Payments to Consultant shall be made monthly, subsequent to the receipt 
by SVH of an invoice  

4. Compensation for services in addition to those described in Exhibit A, if 
required, shall be negotiated separately. No additional services shall be 
authorized except by written addendum to Exhibit A signed by Consultant 
and SVH. 

B. Payment upon Termination. 

1. Termination Pursuant to Section II.B. In the event of termination of this 
Agreement by SVH pursuant to Section II.B above, SVH shall have the 
right to withhold monies otherwise payable to Consultant until 
Consultant’s services under this Agreement are completed. If SVH incurs 
additional costs, expenses, or other damages due to the failure of 
Consultant to properly perform pursuant to the Agreement, these costs, 
expenses, or other damages shall be deducted from the amounts withheld. 
Should the amounts withheld exceed the amounts deducted, the balance 
will be paid to Consultant upon completion of the services to be provided 
under this Agreement. If the costs, expenses, or other damages incurred by 
SVH exceed the amounts withheld, Consultant shall be liable to SVH for 
the difference. 

2. Termination Pursuant to Section II.C or II.D. In the event of termination 
of this Agreement pursuant to Section II.C or II.D above, SVH will pay 
Consultant in full for all services performed, up to and including the 
effective date of termination. In ascertaining the services actually rendered 
up to the date of termination, consideration shall be given to both 



6 
SFCA_386114.1 

completed service and service in progress, whether delivered to SVH or in 
the possession of Consultant. 

3. Waiver of Claims. Consultant hereby waives all claims against SVH, 
whether based on contract or tort, for any special, indirect or incidental 
damages and loss of anticipated profits on account of any termination of 
this Agreement by SVH and, as the sole right or remedy of Consultant on 
account of such termination, Consultant shall receive the amounts payable 
to Consultant under this Section IV.A. 

V. INDEMNIFICATION 

A. With the exception that this Article V shall in no event be construed to require 
indemnification by Consultant to a greater extent than permitted by the laws and 
the public policy of the State of California and without in any manner limiting the 
rights and remedies of SVH in the event of a breach of this Agreement, 
Consultant agrees to indemnify, protect and defend, and hold harmless SVH,  Jtec 
HCM, Inc., the project manager, any lender on all or any portion of the Project, 
their affiliated parent and subsidiary companies and the directors, officers, agents 
and employees of each of them, together with their successors and assigns 
(individually, “Indemnified Party” and collectively the “Indemnified Parties”) 
from and against any and all causes of action, demands, losses, violations, 
infringements of law, patent, license or trademark, costs, attorneys’ and experts’ 
fees, claims, damages, judgments and liabilities of every kind and nature 
(including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and expenses of every kind and 
nature whatsoever (collectively, the “Claims”) arising out of, alleged to have risen 
out of, or resulting in any way from this Agreement, the Work hereunder or any 
other work performed by Consultant and its Subconsultants relating to the Project 
provided that a Claim (i) is attributable to personal or bodily injury to or death of 
any person or persons, including, without limitation, employees of Consultant or 
any Subconsultant, or damage to property of any kind whatsoever, other than the 
work itself, including, without limitation, loss of use thereof, or violation of laws, 
and (ii) is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission to act or willful 
misconduct by Consultant, any Subconsultant, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by Consultant or any Subconsultant or anyone for whose acts 
Consultant or any Subconsultant may be liable. Consultant’s obligation to 
indemnify and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless shall apply with full force 
and effect regardless of any active and/or passive negligent act or omission by any 
Indemnified Party.  However, Consultant shall have no obligation to indemnify 
any Indemnified Party against liability for death, injury or damage or other loss, 
damage or expense arising solely from the negligence or willful misconduct of 
such Indemnified Party or for defects in design furnished by SVH, its agents or 
employees or independent contractors, other than Consultant, who are directly 
responsible to SVH. 

B. The indemnification obligations of Consultant under this Article V (the 
“Indemnification Obligations”) shall not be limited by the amounts or types of 



7 
SFCA_386114.1 

insurance which Consultant is required to carry under this Agreement.  In claims 
against SVH and/or any of the Indemnified Parties hereunder by an employee of 
Consultant, any Subconsultant, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Consultant, any Subconsultant or anyone for whose act Consultant or any 
Subconsultant may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited 
by a limitation in amounts or types of damages, compensation or benefits payable 
by or for Consultant, any Subconsultant or anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by Consultant, any Subconsultant or anyone for whose acts Consultant or any 
Subconsultant may be liable. 

C. The Indemnification Obligations shall survive the expiration or earlier termination 
of this Agreement, and shall continue until the last to occur of (i) the last day 
permitted by law for the bringing of any claim or action with respect to which 
indemnification may be claimed by any of the Indemnified Parties against 
Consultant under this Article V, or (ii) the date on which any claim or action for 
which indemnification may be claimed under this Article V or elsewhere in this 
Agreement or the Exhibits hereto is fully and finally resolved and, if applicable, 
any compromise thereof or judgment or award thereon is paid in full by 
Consultant, any Indemnified Party is reimbursed by Consultant for any amounts 
paid by the Indemnified Party in compromise thereof or upon a judgment or 
award thereon and in defense of such action or claim, including, without 
limitation, attorneys’ fees and expenses, court costs and litigation expenses which 
are incurred.  The Indemnification Obligations shall extend to costs incurred by 
any Indemnified Party in the good faith settlement of any disputes or claims 
brought by third parties (including, without limitation, governmental agencies) 
against SVH, Consultant and/or Subconsultant   and related to Consultant’s or any 
Subcontractor’s performance of the services hereunder, or any other work done by 
Consultant or any Subconsultant under or in connection with this Agreement or 
the Project. Consultant shall have the right to post a bond for said disputed 
amounts. The Indemnification Obligations shall not be construed to negate, 
abridge or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which 
otherwise exists as to any Indemnified Party. Acceptance of any Work by SVH 
shall not operate as a waiver of any Indemnification Obligation. 

VI. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Consultant, at Consultant’s sole cost and expense, shall insure its activities in 
connection with this Agreement, and shall obtain, keep in force, and maintain 
insurance as listed below. The coverage’s required under this Article VI shall not 
in any way limit the liability of Consultant. 

A. Either Comprehensive Form General Liability Insurance (Contractual, products, 
and completed operations coverage’s included) with a combined single limit of no 
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, or Commercial-Form General Liability 
Insurance with coverage and minimum limits as follows: 

1. Each Occurrence $1,000,000 



8 
SFCA_386114.1 

2. Products Completed, Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

3. Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

4. General Aggregate $2,000,000 

B. Business Automobile Liability insurance for owned, scheduled, no owned, or 
hired automobiles, with a combined single limit of no less than $1 million per 
accident. 

C. If the above insurance (subparagraphs VI.A-VI.B) is written on a claims-made 
basis, it shall be maintained continuously for a period of no less than 3 years after 
the date of Final Completion of the services authorized pursuant to each Exhibit A 
executed.  The insurance shall have a retroactive date of placement prior to or 
coinciding with the date services are first provided that are governed by the terms 
of this Agreement and shall include, without limitation, coverage for professional 
services as called for in this Agreement.  Insurance required by Paragraphs VI.A-
VI.C shall be issued by companies that have a Best rating of A- or better, and a 
financial classification of VIII or better (or an equivalent rating by Standard & 
Poor or Moody’s). 

D. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required and under the Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance and Safety Act of the State of California, as amended 
from time to time. Insurance required by this Paragraph VI.E shall be issued by 
companies (i) that have a Best rating of A- or better, and a financial classification 
of VIII or better (or an equivalent rating by Standard & Poor or Moody’s); or (ii) 
that are acceptable to SVH. 

E. Consultant, upon the execution of this Agreement, shall furnish SVH with one or 
more Certificates of Insurance evidencing compliance with this Article VI, 
including the following requirements: 

1. Provide that coverage cannot be canceled without 30 days advance written 
notice to SVH. 

2. If insurance policies are canceled for non-payment, SVH reserves the right 
to maintain policies in effect by continuing to make the policy payments 
or by obtaining new policies and assessing the costs thereby incurred 
against Consultant. 

3. The General Liability Insurance policy and the Business Automobile 
Liability Insurance policy shall name SVH and any other parties requested 
in writing by SVH as Additional Insureds. 



9 
SFCA_386114.1 

VII. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS 

A. Nondiscrimination 

Consultant acknowledges that SVH is subject to various federal, state and local 
laws, executive orders, rules and regulations regarding equal opportunity and 
affirmative action, and that some or all of such laws, orders, rules and regulations 
may also be applicable to its consultants and contractors.  Consultant therefore 
agrees to abide by, and to require all Consultant’s subconsultants to abide by any 
and all applicable equal opportunity and affirmative action requirements set forth 
in federal, state and local laws, executive orders, rules and regulations, including 
without limitation the following: 

1. The nondiscrimination and affirmative action clauses contained in:  
Executive Order 11246, as amended, relative to equal opportunity for all 
persons without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin; the 
Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, relative to the 
employment of qualified handicapped individuals without discrimination 
based upon their physical or mental handicaps; the Vietnam Era Veterans 
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, relative to the 
employment of disabled veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era; and the 
implementing rules and regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Labor 
in Title 41, Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”), Part 60 et seq.; and 

2. The utilization of small and minority-owned business concerns clauses 
contained in: the Small Business Act, as amended; Executive 
Order 11625; and the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) at 48 CFR 
Chapter 1, Part 19, Subchapter D, and Part 52, Subchapter H, relative to 
the utilization of minority business enterprises, small business concerns 
and small business concerns owned and controlled by socially and 
economically disadvantaged individuals, in the performance of contracts 
awarded by federal agencies. 

VIII. CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. In performing the Services, Consultant will have access to SVH’s Confidential 
Information. The term “Confidential Information” includes, without limitation, all 
information regarding SVH’s business activities, finances, trade secrets, existing 
and prospective contracts and business relationships, past operating results, and 
such other information about SVH’s management, administration, operations, 
business methods, and finances, whether now known or acquired or created in the 
future, and whether or not the information is in writing, which Consultant knows 
or should reasonably believe is of a confidential nature.  Consultant understands 
and agrees that his misuse or wrongful disclosure of Confidential Information 
shall not only constitute a breach of this Agreement, but a violation of his duty to 
act in SVH’s best interests. Consultant shall not at any time use or otherwise 
exploit any Confidential Information for Consultant’s personal benefit or for the 



10 
SFCA_386114.1 

benefit of any other person, or disclose any such Confidential Information to any 
third person or entity without SVH’s prior written consent, whether during or 
after the Term of this Agreement. 

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Consultant shall have no obligation with respect 
to Confidential Information which: (i) is or becomes generally known to the 
public by any means other than a breach of Consultant’s obligations hereunder; 
(ii) was previously known to Consultant or rightly received by Consultant from a 
third party; (iii) is independently developed by Consultant without reference to 
information derived from SVH; and (iv) is subject to disclosure under court order 
or other lawful process. 

C. Except as hereafter provided, Consultant shall not, without prior written approval 
of SVH, use SVH’s name in advertising, publicity, press releases, or other graphic 
or written materials distributed to prospective customers, third parties, or to other 
persons. 

D. Consultant’s use of SVH’s name without the prior written consent of SVH shall 
be limited to the placement of a short abstract of the Projects in the standard 
statement of qualifications that Consultant provides prospective customers; 
provided, however, that such abstract shall comply in all respects with the 
confidentiality requirements set forth in this Article VIII. 

IX. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE. 

A. Intent. 

The parties intend to resolve all disputes or other matters in question arising out of 
or relating to the interpretation, application, performance or breach of any term, 
covenant or condition of this Agreement through reasonable business-like 
negotiations without resort to litigation. If a dispute should arise regarding the 
obligations of Consultant or SVH towards each other or the Project, the parties 
shall attempt to resolve the dispute in accordance with this Article IX.  Neither 
SVH nor Consultant shall initiate any legal proceedings against the other before 
completing the procedures identified in Section IX.A.2.(A)-(C) below.  Unless 
SVH requires otherwise, and regardless of the size or nature of the dispute, 
Consultant shall not cease or delay performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement during the existence of any dispute, and SVH shall pay to Consultant 
all amounts owing and not subject to dispute or offset. 

1. Consultant shall incorporate the provisions of this Article IX into contracts 
with all of Consultant’s subconsultants so that such consultants shall also 
be bound to this dispute resolution procedure. 

2. Resolution Procedure. Consultant and SVH shall employ reasonable 
efforts to resolve any disputes in accordance with the following 
procedures: 



11 
SFCA_386114.1 

(A) Special Meeting. SVH or Consultant may call a special meeting 
for the resolution of disputes.  The meeting shall be held within 
three (3) working days of a written request for the meeting, which 
shall specify the nature of the dispute to be resolved.  The meeting 
shall be held at SVH’s offices. The meeting shall be attended by 
representatives of SVH, Consultant, any of Consultant’s 
subconsultants involved, and, at SVH’s request, any other agents, 
contractors, subcontractors or independent contractors of SVH.  
Such representatives shall have authority to resolve the dispute and 
shall not be attorney(s) actively practicing law. 

(B) Senior Management Meeting. If the dispute has not been 
resolved within five (5) working days after the special meeting has 
occurred, then a senior management meeting will be held to 
attempt to resolve the dispute.  The attendees of this meeting shall 
include applicable parties to the dispute and, in addition, senior 
level representatives of Consultant, SVH and other parties subject 
to the dispute. The purpose of this meeting will be to expeditiously 
resolve the dispute. 

(C) Mandatory Mediation. If the dispute has not been resolved within 
five (5) working days after the senior management meeting has 
occurred, any party thereto may, at its option, initiate a mediation 
proceeding which shall be attended by all parties to the dispute and 
which, unless all parties to such proposed mediation proceeding 
agree otherwise, shall be conducted by an independent mediator 
from Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services in accordance 
with its procedures. The costs of the mediation shall be shared 
equally by all parties to such mediation. 

(D) Settlement. If, as a result of the mediation, a voluntary settlement 
is reached and the parties agree that such settlement shall be 
reduced to writing, the mediator shall hereby be deemed appointed 
and constituted an arbitrator for the sole purpose of signing the 
mediation agreement. Such agreement shall have the same force 
and effect as an arbitration award and judgment may be entered 
upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 

(E) The proceedings under this Section shall be subject to the 
California Evidence Code. Further, the parties agree that evidence 
of anything said or presented, or of any admission made during or 
in the course of the special meeting, senior management meeting 
or mediation shall not be admissible in evidence or subject to 
discovery, and disclosure of such evidence shall not be compelled, 
in any arbitration, court action or proceeding.  All communication, 
negotiations, or settlement discussions by and between participants 



12 
SFCA_386114.1 

in the special meeting, senior management meeting or between 
participants or mediators in the mediation shall remain 
confidential. This provision shall not limit the discoverability or 
admissibility of evidence if all persons who conducted or 
otherwise participated in the mediation consent to its disclosure. 
The parties further and expressly agree that the presentation of 
evidence from any expert or consultant shall not waive any 
attorney-client privilege, attorney work product immunity or any 
other exclusionary rule a party may later seek to assert in another 
proceeding. 

(F) This dispute resolution procedure shall not in any way affect any 
statutes of limitation relating to any claim, dispute or other matter 
or question arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the 
breach thereof. This dispute resolution procedure may be 
conducted before or during the pendency of any other legal 
proceedings. 

X. NOTICES 

A. SVH. 

Any notice may be served upon SVH by delivering it, in writing, to SVH at the 
address set forth on the last page of this Agreement, by depositing it in a United 
States Postal Service deposit box with sufficient first class postage fully prepaid 
and with the notice addressed to SVH at the aforementioned address, or by 
sending a facsimile of it to SVH facsimile number set forth on the last page of this 
Agreement. 

B. Consultant. 

Any notice may be served upon Consultant by delivering it, in writing, to 
Consultant at the address set forth on the last page of this Agreement, by 
depositing it in a United States Postal Service deposit box with sufficient first 
class postage fully prepaid and with the notice addressed to Consultant at this 
address, or by sending a facsimile of it to Consultant facsimile number set forth 
on the last page of this Agreement. 

XI. AUTHORITY OF AGREEMENT 

A. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between SVH and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, 
either written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written 
instrument signed by both SVH and Consultant. 

B. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, 
the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to be valid and enforceable.  



13 
SFCA_386114.1 

C. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of California 

D. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between SVH and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, 
either written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written 
instrument signed by both SVH and Consultant. 

 

E. This Agreement includes the following exhibits attached herewith: 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
Exhibit B: Consultant Fee Schedule 

 



14 
SFCA_386114.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SVH and Consultant have executed this Agreement on the 
_______________________. 

SVH: 
 
Sonoma Valley Hospital 
 
 
 
  

(Signature) 
Kelly Mather, President and CEO 
 
 
 
  

(Date) 
 
 
SVH ADDRESS: 
  
Sonoma Valley Hospital 
347 Andrieux Street 
Sonoma, CA 95476 
 
Tel. No.: (707) 935-5005 
Fax No.: (707) 935-5433 
 

CONSULTANT: 
 
Labor Compliance Specialists, Inc.  

 
 
 
  

(Signature) 
Doug Shortridge 
President/Program Manager 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

(Date) 
 
 
CONSULTANT ADDRESS: 
 
Labor Compliance Specialists, Inc. 
PO Box 2085 
Napa, CA, 94558 
 
Tel. No.: (707) 257-2260 
Fax No.: (707) 257-2261 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



A-1 
SFCA_386114.1 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 

 
 

• Consulting services to initiate and enforce a Labor Compliance Program pursuant to Labor 
Code §1771.5 for the facility upgrade project  under the contract with Otto Construction Inc. for 
the Sonoma Valley Health Care District as described below. 
 

• Department of Industrial Relations (DIR)-Approved LCP #2003.00032 adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma Valley Health Care District on August 4, 2011, 
Resolution No. 304. 

 
• Notification to the DIR of resolution on August 5, 2011. 

 
• Continued implementation of adopted program as consultant after “grandfathering” 

process occurs September 1, 2011. 
 

• Contract documents and Notice to Bidders LCP language support. 
 

• Outreach and education to contractors in advance of project bid as directed. 
 

• Public relations and CPR request responses to unions or other outside parties as directed. 
 

• Official preconstruction meeting for LCP as required by statute. 
 

• Certified Payroll Records and pertinent contractor documents receipt, review, and audits. 
(All payroll records and other LCP documents to be mailed to specially designated USPS 
Post Office Box 3059, Napa, CA 94558 – Note this address is different than consultant 
business address.) 

 
• Weekly site visits as required by regulations. 

 
• Assistance, correction and payroll practice consulting to contractors throughout project. 

 
• Formal Audit/Investigation if required by complaint or evidence of improper payroll 

practices. 
 

• Request for Approval of Forfeiture to Labor Commissioner if required after investigation. 
 

• Taking cognizance and informing enforcement authorities regarding suspected 
Apprenticeship Law violations (regulation requirement).  

 
• All required jobsite, DIR, District, and contractor notices and documents during LCP 

implementation and any formal investigation/withholding process documents as required. 
 



A-2 
SFCA_386114.1 

• Administrative review hearing engagement if required by contractor appeal.  
 

• Annual Reports for fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2013. 
 



B-1 
SFCA_386114.1 

EXHIBIT B 

CONSULTANT FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

Fixed Lump Sum Fee: $81,450.00 (eighty-one thousand four hundred fifty dollars). 
 

Initial Fee portion to provide and facilitate all required procedures for “grandfathering” by SVH 
pursuant to Director of Industrial Relations Policy Letter dated July 1, 2011, the established and  
pre-approved Labor Compliance Program DIR #2003.00032 – 25% of fee - $20,362.50 to be 
invoiced upon execution of contract. 

 
Remaining $61,087.50 to be paid in 20 equal monthly increments of $3,054.37 for the period 
December 2011 through July 31, 2013, and a final payment of $.10 (ten cents – adjusting amount) 
for the period of August 1-4, 2013. 

 

















 
4. 

 
SONOMA CO. DEPT. OF HEALTH 

SERVICES 
 

HEALTH 
IMPROVEMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE PLAN 

PRESENTATION 















 
5. 

 
 

SVH-MGH AFFILIATION 
AGREEMENT – 

REVISED EXHIBIT A 
 



EXHIBIT A 

PROJECTS 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide a structure for the exploration, development and 
implementation of joint projects and programs deemed mutually beneficial to MGH and SVH, 
as exemplified by the following: 

• Chief Financial Officer oversight of all financial functions at SVH by MGH employee 

On Going Priority Projects: 

 
• Director of Health Information Services oversight of SVH medical records department 

 
• Financial services consolidation of budgeting and accounting functions for SVH 

 
• Supply chain consolidation 

 
• Prima Medical Foundation physicians in Sonoma 

 

• Patient Accounting consolidations 

Priority Projects: 

 
• Home Care expansion of SVH to Marin County 

 
• Information Services consolidations 

 
• Materials Management services consolidations 

 

• Regional strategic planning with physician and hospital partners in the North Bay 

Other Projects: 

 
• Service line marketing for North Bay 

 
• One call referral system to MGH 

 
• Skilled Nursing services at SVH 

 
• Investigate options for legally permitted Payor Contracting  

 



 
6. 

 
 

LANDMARK OPTION 
AGREEMENT- 

LEASE EASEMENT 
PURCHASE 



2141 Rosecrans Ave, Ste. 2100 – El Segundo, CA  90245
(866) 392-4200  -  (310) 294-8160

May 17, 2013

Bill Boerum
Sonoma Valley Hospital District
347 Andrieux St
Sonoma, CA 95476
USA

RE: Option Agreement – Lease Easement Purchase

Landmark Dividend LLC ("Landmark") is pleased to offer you the following proposal. Landmark has completed an 
initial analysis of the lease(s) and associated revenue for 1 lease(s) located on property owned by you (the 
“Premises”) and identified in Exhibit A (the “Lease(s)”). Based on this preliminary analysis, Landmark will provide 
$212,000.00 in exchange for a 480 month easement to the Premises and assignment of your interest in the Leases 
and associated rent revenue.

By signing below, you grant Landmark an option to complete the contemplated transaction and purchase from you 
the landlord interest in the Leases. Landmark may exercise the option granted herein at any time within 90 
calendar days of the date of full execution of this letter and receipt of necessary due diligence items.

You acknowledge that a $100 non-refundable cash deposit by Landmark and Landmark’s commitment to expend 
time, effort and expense to evaluate this transaction are good, valuable and sufficient consideration for the option 
granted herein. You agree to cooperate fully with Landmark in connection with its evaluation of this transaction. 
You shall not, directly or indirectly, (a) offer the Leases or the Premises for sale or assignment to any other person; 
(b) negotiate, solicit or entertain any offers to sell or assign any interest in the Leases or Premises to any other 
person; or (c) modify, amend, supplement, extend, renew, terminate or cancel the Leases.

This letter is intended as and shall be a legally binding commitment. In the event of a breach of this letter 
agreement, Landmark shall, in addition to its other rights and remedies, be entitled to compensation for its time, 
effort and expense to evaluate this transaction and, in any action to enforce this letter agreement, to recovery of 
its reasonable attorneys’ fees.

Your signature below will indicate your agreement to the foregoing and will provide authorization for Landmark to 
proceed with the evaluation of this transaction and completion of its due diligence including but not limited to 
verification with the tenants of the accuracy of the due diligence items.

We look forward to working with you on this transaction. Should you have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me at any time.

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED AS INDICATED BELOW AS OF THE ______ DAY OF __________, ______

LANDMARK DIVIDEND LLC  
Sonoma Valley Hospital District

Bill Boerum



Exhibit A

Tenant/ Carrier Term 
Purchased Current Rent Rent 

Frequency
Escalation 

Rate
Escalation 
Frequency

Date of Next 
Escalation

AT&T Mobility 480 Months $1,688.00 Monthly 9.00 % Term March 01, 
2017

 



 
7. 

 
 

CITY OF SONOMA 
SOUTH LOT DEFERRED 

IMPROVEMENT 
AGREEMENT 



 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2013 

Prepared by: Peter Hohorst, Board Member 

Agenda Item Title: Deferred Approval Agreement with the City of Sonoma 

Recommendation: 

That the Board approve the Deferred Approval Agreement with the City of Sonoma for 
the future street improvements to 4th

Background and Reasoning: 

 and Hayes Streets adjacent to the new 81 space 
parking lot on the South lot. 

It is the standard practice of the City of Sonoma to require owners of property that is 
being developed to improve the street and sidewalk on the frontage of the property. It is 
also standard practice to defer these improvements until all of the frontage on that block 
is under development.  

As part of the use permit process for the GO Bond project the City Planning 
Commission required the District to provide an 81 space parking lot on the South lot. 
This lot has been completed and is being used on a temporary use permit while the 
details of a deferred improvement agreement were being worked out between the North 
Valley Bank (the owner of the property), the District (the lessee of the property) and the 
City of Sonoma. 

The deferred improvement agreement that has been accepted by the City would limit 
the District’s obligation to provide street and sidewalk improvements to the 200 feet of 
frontage of the property improved by the parking lot. The improvements will be deferred 
until the south end of the property is developed. 

An agreement is also required with the North Valley Bank to absolve the North Valley 
Bank of any responsibility for the cost of the future improvements. 

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 

The City could revoke the temporary use permit for the parking lot until the deferred 
improvement agreement was approved by the Board, thereby requiring employees and 
visitors to park on the street. 

The City could require the street improvements to be made before a use permit for the 
parking lot would be issued, again requiring employees and visitors to park on the street. 



The City could withdraw their approval of the deferred improvement agreement and 
instead require the street improvements be made to the entire length of both 4th

Financial Impact: 

 and 
Hayes Streets. 

The deferred improvement agreement commits the District to an estimated $500,000 to 
provide the street and sidewalk improvements sometime in the future. It does not 
commit the District to an estimated cost of $2,000,000 to provide street and sidewalk 
improvements the full length of both 4th

Attachments:  

 and Hayes streets. 

Deferred Improvement Agreement between the City and the North Valley Bank 

Performance and Indemnity Agreement between the North Valley Bank and the District 

Conditions of Approval for the development of the South Lot  

Drawing of the South Lot showing the limit of the required street and sidewalk 
improvements 

















































DEraut


DEraut
25lf

DEraut


DEraut
200lf



 
8. 

 
 

CEO INCENTIVE 
COMPENSATION GOALS 

FY14 



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:   August 1, 2013  

Prepared by: Sharon Nevins  

Agenda Item Title: 2014 Incentive Compensation 

 
Recommendations: 
Approval of the recommendation from the Incentive Compensation Committee for 2014 
incentive compensation for the CEO  
 
Background: 
This recommendation for the CEO incentive compensation for 2014 reflects changes in the 
health care environment, specifically in the areas of hospital services as well as the increased 
emphasis on a health community.   This results in a merger of the CEO incentive goals of 
hospital performance, as measured in the past, with the implementation of the Three-Year 
Strategic Plan. The committee has included the 2013 incentive compensation guidelines for 
comparison. 
 
The following relates the committee’s comments on the reasons for the changes 
  
Items that have lost significance in the new trends in healthcare and have been eliminated from 
the incentive compensation guidelines include inpatient growth and measuring outpatient 
growth in gross revenue over prior years.  

Inpatient shrinkage continues to occur nationally, regionally and in our hospital with 
many of the providers reimbursing for services on an outpatient basis rather than an 
inpatient stay.  
While growth in outpatient services is desirable, measurement of success as reflected in 
the budgeted financials (that evaluates the net revenues) will be a more reliable 
guideline. 

 
Service Excellence, Quality, People and Finance remain strong indicators of success in hospital 
with minor adjustments to the objective and metric 

Service Excellence for inpatient satisfaction will reflect the results of the HCAHPS 
percentiles instead of the previous Press Ganey rankings. 
Service Excellence for outpatient satisfaction for 2014 will focus on the objective of high 
emergency department satisfaction as we transition to the new facility and attempt to 
increase the public perception of excellence. 



2 

Quality of Care through the objective of excellent clinical outcomes will continue to be 
measured by the value based purchasing clinical score 
Staff engagement and satisfaction will continue to be monitored through the Press 
Ganey percentile ranking of the current mean score 
For 2014, Financial Success will be based on achieving the 2014 budget, adjusted for 
unanticipated and uncontrollable prior period adjustments.  While EBIDA  can still be 
calculated and used for review purposes, it is proposed that the 2014 budget be used 
for incentive compensation purposes. 

 
Success in Community Activities has been shifted away from community benefit hours and 
towards achieving recognition for the development of Healthy Community goals with 
community partners as envisioned in the Three-Year Strategic Plan. 
 
Shifts of performance goals percentages used for calculation of the total compensation were 
reviewed and approved by the Committee based on the changing environment.     

 
  

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
The Board has approved the creation of the incentive compensation guidelines and negative 
action/alternative action would delay the implementation of this project 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
 
Attachment: 
 
2014 CEO Goals 
2013 CEO Goals 



1 

     
FY 2014 CEO GOALS 

Level 3: 10% Salary Incentive Compensation 
Level 4: 13% Salary Incentive Compensation 
Level 5: 15% Salary Incentive Compensation 

 

PERFRMANCE GOAL  OBJECTIVE  METRIC  ACTUAL 

RESULT 
FY 2013 

GOAL LEVEL  

Service Excellence 
20% 

High In-Patient 
Satisfaction  

5 out of 8 HCAHPS 
questions above 50th 

percentile 

2 

 
>7 out of 8= 5 
>6 out of 8 = 4  
>5 out of 8 = 3 (Goal)  
>2 out of 8 = 2  
<2 out of 8 = 1 

Service Excellence 
10% 

High Emergency 
Department 
Satisfaction 

75th percentile  72nd >85th  = 5  
>80th=4  
>75th =3 (Goal) 
>70th=2  
<70th = 1 

Quality 
20% 

Excellent Clinical 
Outcomes  

Value Based 
Purchasing Clinical 

Score 
5  100% for 12 mos= 5  

100% 9/12 mos=4  
100% 6/12 mos =3 (Goal)  
100% 3/12 mos = 2  
<100% 3/12 mos = 1 

People 
10% 

Highly Engaged 
and Satisfied Staff 

Press Ganey 
percentile ranking of 
current mean score  

  80thth

 
 percentile >85th

>82nd=4  
 = 5  

>80th=3 (Goal)  
>75th=2  
<70th =1  

Finance 
30% 

 

Financial Viability  Meet budgeted 
expectations 

Met budget 
without prior year 

adjustments 

>2% = 5  
>1% = 4 
At budget = 3 (Goal) 
<1% = 2 
<2% = 1 

Healthy Community   
10% 

 

Collaborate on 
Valley Health 
Dashboard 

Determine at least 3 
community health 

measures and create 
programs to improve 
them with community 

partners 

2 initiatives with 
Health Round 
Table but not 

measured 

5 measures = 5 
4 measures = 4 
3 measures = 3 (Goal) 
2 measures = 2 
1 measure = 1 
 

     

        



 
9. 

 
 

JUNE 2013 FINANCIAL 
REPORT 



Sonoma Valley Hospital 
Sonoma Valley Health Care District 

  June 30, 2013 Financial Report 
 

Finance Committee 

July 30, 2013 

1 



June’s Patient Volumes 

2 

Actual  Budget Variance Prior Year 

Acute Discharges 87 126 -39 107 

Acute Patient Days 323 446 -123 354 

SNF Patient Days 470 589 -119 688 

Outpatient Gross Revenue (in 
thousands) $8,353 $8,441 -$88 $7,667 

Surgical Cases 116 129 -13 120 



3 

Actual Budget Variance Percentage Prior Year 

1 Total Operating Revenue  $    3,905,296   $    3,912,788   $         (7,492) 0%  $    3,893,235  

2 Total Operating Expenses  $    4,693,845   $    4,357,080   $     (336,765) -8%  $    5,143,165  

3 Operating Margin  $      (788,549)  $      (444,292)  $     (344,257) -77%  $  (1,249,930) 

4 NonOperating Rev/Exp  $       336,839   $       459,942   $     (123,103) -27%  $    1,182,290  

5 Net Income before Restricted Cont.  $      (451,710)  $         15,650   $     (467,360) -2986%  $        (67,640) 

6 Restricted Contribution  $    1,183,975   $         47,500   $   1,136,475  2393%  $                   -    

7 
Net Income with Restricted 
Contributions  $       732,265   $         63,150   $      669,115  1060%  $        (67,640) 

8 EBIDA before Restricted Contributions  $      (191,010)  $       271,013   $     (462,023)  $       175,630  

9 EBIDA before Restricted Cont. % -5% 7% -2% 5% 

10 Net Income without GO Bond Activity  $       622,414   $        (65,172)  $      687,586   $      (191,196) 

Summary Statement of  
Revenues and Expenses 
Month of June 30, 2013 



4 

Summary Statement of  
Revenues and Expenses 

Year to Date June 30, 2013 

Actual Budget Variance Percentage Prior Year 

1 Total Operating Revenue  $  47,079,081   $  47,398,148   $     (319,067) -1%  $  47,355,473  

2 Total Operating Expenses  $  53,105,418   $  52,484,254   $     (621,164) -1%  $  52,238,915  

3 Operating Margin  $  (6,026,337)  $  (5,086,106)  $     (940,231) -18%  $  (4,883,442) 

4 NonOperating Rev/Exp  $    5,484,701   $    5,519,304   $       (34,603) -1%  $    4,250,312  

5 Net Income before Restricted Cont.  $      (541,636)  $       433,198   $     (974,834) -225%  $      (633,130) 

6 Restricted Contribution  $    1,973,186   $       570,000   $   1,403,186  246%  $    2,043,087  

7 
Net Income with Restricted 
Contributions  $    1,431,550   $    1,003,198   $      428,352  43%  $    1,409,957  

8 EBIDA before Restricted Contributions  $    2,312,713   $    3,497,565   $ (1,184,852)  $    2,090,723  

9 EBIDA before Restricted Cont. % 6% 7% -1% 4% 

10 Net Income without GO Bond Activity  $  (2,010,603)  $  (1,106,666)  $     (903,937)  $  (3,072,885) 



   
347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

 
 
 
 
To:  SVH Finance Committee     
From:  Rick Reid, CFO 
Date:  July 30, 2013 
Subject: Financial Report for the Month Ending June 30, 2013 

 

Overall Results for June 2013 
Overall for June, SVH has a net income of $732,280 on budgeted income of $63,150, for an favorable 
difference of $669,130.   Total net patient service revenue was under budget by ($151,537).  Risk 
contracts were over budget by $72,107.  Other operating revenue is over budget by $71,953, bringing 
the total operating revenue to $3,905,311 or ($7,477) under budget.  Expenses were $4,693,845 on a 
budget of $4,357,080 or ($336,765) over budget.   The EBIDA prior to the restricted donations for the 
month was ($191,000) or -4.9%. 
 

On a year to date basis, the loss prior to the restricted contributions was $618,860.  This loss includes 
the Medicare paybacks due to the RAC audits of $1,109,223.  Adjusting for RAC audits, the income prior 
to the restricted contributions would have by $490,363 on a budget of $433,198 or $57,165 better than 
budget.   
 

Patient Volumes - June 
 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PRIOR YEAR 

Acute Discharges 87 126 -39 107 

Acute Patient Days 323 446 -123 354 

SNF Patient Days 470 589 -119 688 

OP Gross Revenue $8,353 $8,441 -$88 $7,667 

Surgical Cases 116 129 -13 120 
 

Overall Payer Mix - June 
 ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE YTD 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
VARIANCE 

Medicare 47.0% 46.7% 0.3% 48.9% 47.3% 1.6% 

Medi-Cal 17.1% 13.3% 3.8% 14.4% 13.3% 1.1% 

Self Pay 1.5% 3.4% -1.9% 3.2% 3.4% -0.2% 

Other:       

Commercial 22.7%   20.5%   

Managed MC 4.4%   4.8%   

Workers Comp 2.0%   3.4%   

Capitated 5.3%   4.8%   

Total Other 34.4% 36.6% -2.6% 33.5% 36.0% -2.5% 

Total 100% 100%  100% 100%  



   
347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

Total Operating Revenues 
Total operating revenues for June were $3.9 million on a budget of $3.9 million or ($7,477) under 
budget.    
Inpatient Net Revenue is under budget by ($422,024) or 27%, due to the following: 

• Medicare discharges under budget by 29, with a favorable rate variance due to the pickup of the 
Medicare pass through payments of $164,812 for a total impact of ($91,444) 

• Medi-Cal patient days under budget by 7, with an unfavorable rate variance for a total impact of 
($64,500) 

• Self pay patient days under budget by 25, with a favorable rate variance for a total impact of 
($185,705).  Patient days were under this month due 31 patients days that were self pay 
becoming eligible for Medi-Cal services.  The self pay discount of approximately $130,000 is 
included in this category. 

• Commercial patient days were under budget by 17 days, with a favorable rate variance for a 
total impact of ($80,375) 

Skilled Nursing Home: 

• Volume was under budget by 119 days and patient acuity was slightly over budget, net impact 
($64,800) 

Outpatient: 

• Volume was under budget by ($83,040) and rates were over budget , net impact of $218,006 
Home Care: 

• Volume was under budget by 30 visits or $13,051. 
Bad Debts and Charity Care: 

• Bad Debt and charity care are favorable to budget by $102,412.  This was due to a higher 
volume of self pay patients qualifying for Medi-Cal.  This offset some of the prior month’s gains.   

Risk Contract Revenue: 

• Napa State was over budget by $84,080, due to higher volume.  
Other Operating Revenue: 

• Other revenue is over budget by $71,953, due to the receipt incentive payment for first and 
second quarter of 2013 from Western Health for $65,834. 

Expenses 
June’s expenses were $4.7million on a budget of $4.4 million or over budget by ($336,765).  
The following is a summary of the operating expense variances for the month of June: 

• Total productivity FTE’s were under budget at 277, on a budget of 286. Total salaries and Agency 
Fees were under budget by a total of $4,641.  Higher agency costs in June offset the 9 FTE 
savings. 

• Employee benefits were over budget by ($22,773), of this health insurance was over budget by 
($27,906), paid time off was over budget by ($24,052).  State unemployment insurance was 
under budget by 33,552 due to the last quarter adjustment from the insurance company. 

• Medical and Professional Fees were under budget by ($58,361) due to the $50,000 legal fee 
associated with the HIPPA matter. 

• Purchase services are over budget by ($243,281) due to Information Systems related to the 
Electronic Health Records that was previously budgeted in as capital and an unbudgeted 
operating lease for the Electronic Health Records.   The variance also reflects the true up on the 



   
347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476-6811  707.935-5000  Fax 707.935.5433 

balance sheet prepaid accounts that were under expensed for a portion of the year of 
approximately $60,000. Also Radiology was over budget by ($25,273) due to lower than the 
minimum usage per the contract.   Patient Accounting was over budget by ($20,586) due to late 
collection agency invoices received that were larger than the monthly estimates.  Plant 
Operations were over budget by ($14,560) due to life safety plans.  Facilities were over budget 
($12,420) due to the department moves.  Public Relation is over budget by ($10,680) due to 
purchase services for advertising. 

• Interest expense over budget by budget ($32,961) due to the line of credit and late fees. 
 
Capital Campaign Summary: 
For the month of June the Hospital received $1,183,975 in capital campaign donations.  The total 
amount received from the Capital Campaign to date is $3,901,939 offset with spending of $648,056.  
The funds are included on line 16, Specific Funds on the Balance Sheet.  Included on line 16 is also 
$21,446 for miscellaneous restricted funds, $114,500 received from the Foundation for the X-ray 
machine and $32,255 for the Health Round Table. 
 
 Receipts Spending Balance 
  Emergency Dept. $1,003,640 $0 $1,003,640 
  Operating Room $0 $0 $0 
  Art Work $100,000 $0 $100,000 
  General $2,798,299 $648,056 $2,150,243 
  Interest Earned $8,343 $0 $8,343 
Total Capital Campaign $3,910,282 $648,056 $3,262,226 
X-Ray Machine $114,500 $0 $114,500 
Misc. Restricted Funds $21,446 $0 $21,446 
Health Round Table $32,500 $245 $32,255 
Total Specific Funds $4,078,728 $648,301 $3,430,427 
 
 
These comparisons are for actual FY 2013 compared to actual FY 2012.  These are not budget 
comparisons. 
 

ER Visits 
 ER – Inpatient ER - Outpatient 

 CY PY Change % CY PY Change % 

July 109 114 -5 -4.4% 729 772 -43 -5.6% 

Aug 106 105 1 .9% 778 718 60 8.4% 

Sept 111 107 4 3.1% 677 693 -16 2.3% 

Oct 95 108 -13 -12% 706 679 27 4.0% 

Nov 101 107 -6 -5.6% 631 632 -1 -0.2% 

Dec 100 119 -19 -16% 693 622 71 11.4% 

Jan 141 93 48 51.6% 711 698 13 1.9% 

Feb 112 94 18 19.1% 598 598 0 0.0% 

Mar 97 121 -24 -19.8% 660 662 -2 -0.3% 

April 88 88 0 0.0% 641 629 12 1.9% 

May 97 107 -10 -9.3% 698 756 -58 -7.7% 

June 89 95 -6 -6.3% 627 715 -88 -12.3% 

YTD 1,246 1,258 -12 -1.0% 8,149 8,174 -25 -0.3% 



YTD
                 This Year                  This Year

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ % Prior Year
Volume Information

1       Acute Discharges 87                       126                         (39)                    -31% 1,366                   1,543                      (177)                 -11% 1,526                       

2       SNF Days 470                    589                         (119)                 -20% 7,624                   8,024                      (400)                 -5% 7,490                       

3       Home Care Visits 990                    1,020                      (30)                    -3% 12,070                 11,215                   855                   8% 11,512                    

4       Gross O/P Revenue (000's) 8,353                 8,441                      (88)                    -1% 102,624$            100,567$               2,057               2% 94,837$                  

Financial Results
Gross Patient Revenue

5       Inpatient 4,367,755$       5,121,630$            (753,875)        -15% 61,939,766$       63,032,497$         (1,092,731)      -2% 57,964,875$          

6       Outpatient & Emergency 8,058,099         8,141,084              (82,985)          -1% 99,124,148         97,268,193            1,855,955       2% 91,718,430             

7       SNF 1,621,275         1,776,963              (155,688)        -9% 25,104,020         23,736,947            1,367,073       6% 23,548,942             

8       Home Care 294,696            299,457                 (4,761)            -2% 3,499,514           3,298,364              201,150           6% 3,118,552               

9    Total Gross Patient Revenue 14,341,825$     15,339,134$         (997,309)        -7% 189,667,448$    187,336,001$       2,331,447       1% 176,350,799$        

Deductions from Revenue

10       Contractual Discounts (11,640,707)$   (11,235,237)$        (405,470)        -4% (141,741,184)$   (137,538,110)$      (4,203,074)      -3% (127,295,324)$       

11       Bad Debt (226,255) (328,667)                102,412         31% (2,901,255) (4,013,995) 1,112,740       28% (3,490,000)

12       Charity Care Provision (22,523) (171,138)                148,615         87% (2,040,452) (2,090,100) 49,648             2% (1,773,377)

13       Prior Period Adjustments 1,000,215         -                               1,000,215      0% (836,022)             -                               (836,022)         0% 957,082                  

14    Total Deductions from Revenue (10,889,270)$   (11,735,042)$        (154,443)         1% (146,682,891)$   (143,642,205)$      (3,040,686)      2% (132,558,701)$       

15 Net Patient Service Revenue 3,452,555$       3,604,092$            (151,537)         -4% 42,984,557$       43,693,796$         (709,239)         -2% 43,792,098$          

16       Risk contract revenue 368,765$          296,658$               72,107             24% 3,825,992$         3,559,896$            266,096           7% 3,396,375$             

17 Net Hospital Revenue 3,821,320$       3,900,750$            (79,430)            -2% 46,810,549$       47,253,692$         (443,143)         -1% 47,188,473$          

18       Other Operating Revenue 83,991$            12,038$                 71,953             -598% 268,541$            144,456$               124,085           86% 167,000$                

19 Total Operating Revenue 3,905,311$       3,912,788$            (7,477)              0% 47,079,090$       47,398,148$         (319,058) -1% 47,355,473$          

   Operating Expenses

20         Salary and Wages and Agency Fees 2,019,841$       2,024,482$            4,641               0% 23,757,873$       23,949,999$         192,126           1% 22,622,659$          

21         Employee Benefits 695,461 672,688$               (22,773)            -3% 8,774,661 8,233,431 (541,230)         -7% 8,326,784

22           Total People Cost 2,715,302$       2,697,170$            (18,132)            -1% 32,532,534$       32,183,430$         (349,104)         -1% 30,949,443$          

23         Med and Prof Fees (excld Agency) 448,365$          390,004$               (58,361)            -15% 4,581,763$         4,686,288$            104,525           2% 5,805,666$             

24         Supplies 493,285 498,685 5,400               1% 6,156,796 5,922,938 (233,858)         -4% 6,230,877

25         Purchased Services 571,426 328,145 (243,281)         -74% 5,083,928 4,367,598 (716,330)         -16% 3,852,433

26         Depreciation 172,043 199,672 27,629             14% 2,132,705 2,396,064 263,359           11% 1,991,127

27         Utilities 85,768 85,888 120                   0% 899,734 994,598 94,864             10% 854,790

28         Insurance 29,044 20,374 (8,670)              -43% 243,607 244,488 881                   0% 230,965

29         Interest 58,641 25,680 (32,961)            -128% 361,512 308,171 (53,341)            -17% 372,596

30         Other 119,971 111,462 (8,509)              -8% 1,112,839 1,380,679 267,840           19% 1,951,018

31               Operating expenses 4,693,845$       4,357,080$            (336,765)         -8% 53,105,418$       52,484,254$         (621,164)         -1% 52,238,915$          

32 Operating Margin (788,534)$         (444,292)$              (344,242) -77% (6,026,328)$        (5,086,106)$          (940,222)         -18% (4,883,442)$           

   Non Operating Rev and Expense

33        Electronic Health Records & Misc. Rev. (13,413)$           147,250$               (160,663)         -109% 1,717,163$         1,767,000$            (49,837)            -3% 487,322$                

34        Donations 31,577               -                          31,577             0% 118,139               -                          118,139           0% 149,906

35        Professional Center/Phys Recruit -                     -                          -                    0% -                       -                          -                    0% (1,550)

36        Physician Practice Support-Prima (65,630) (65,630) -                    0% (787,560) (787,560) -                    0% (782,817)

37        Parcel Tax Assessment Rev 274,448 250,000 24,448             10% 2,967,986 3,000,000 (32,014)            -1% 2,914,779

38        GO Bond Tax Assessment Rev 139,868 158,333 (18,465)            -12% 1,829,105 1,899,996 (70,891)            -4% 1,842,802

39        GO Bond Interest (30,011) (30,011) -                    0% (360,132) (360,132) -                    0% (360,130)

40    Total Non-Operating Rev/Exp 336,839$          459,942$               (123,103)         -27% 5,484,701$         5,519,304$            (34,603)            -1% 4,250,312$             

41 Net Income / (Loss)  prior to Restricted Contributions (451,695)$         15,650$                 (467,345)        -2986% (541,627)$           433,198$               (974,825)         -225% (633,130)$               

42 Capital Campaign Contribution 1,183,975$       47,500$                 1,136,475      2393% 1,858,852$         570,000$               1,288,852       226% 2,043,087$             

43 Restricted Foundation Contributions -$                        -$                            -                     0% 114,334$            -$                            114,334           100% -$                             

44 Net Income / (Loss) w/ Restricted Contributions 732,280$          63,150$                 669,130         1060% 1,431,559$         1,003,198$            428,361           43% 1,409,957$             

45 Net Income w/o GO Bond Activity 622,423$          (65,172)$                687,595         1055% (2,010,600)$        (1,106,666)$          (903,934)         -82% (2,115,802)$           

         Variance          Variance

Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Comparative Results
For the Period Ended June 2013

Month Year-To- Date



                                                                                   Pre-Audit

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year

Assets

Current Assets:

1   Cash 974,983$           1,804,380$        1,790,849$         
2   Trustee Funds 1,263,697          1,263,697          276,368              
3   Net Patient Receivables 9,521,613          9,386,703          8,068,207           
4   Other Accts/Notes Rec 5,501,182          341,917             6,344,008           
5   Allow Uncollect Accts (1,471,800)        (1,454,077)        (1,976,621)          
6   3rd Party Receivables 372,888             196,514             1,395,719           
7   Due Frm Restrict Funds -                        -                        -                          
8   Inventory 794,634             881,191             864,137              
9   Prepaid Expenses 1,074,412          1,224,325          569,480              

10         Total Current Assets 18,031,609$      13,644,650$      17,332,147$       

11 Board Designated Assets 186,468$           186,468$           185,909$            
12 Property,Plant & Equip, Net 10,674,452        10,698,381        11,273,989         
13 Hospital Renewal Program 29,991,133        25,906,659        13,942,317         
14 Unexpended Hospital Renewal Funds 4,024,454          8,028,978          18,963,901         
15 Investments -                        -                        36,839                
16 Specific Funds 3,430,427          2,214,442          1,869,491           
17 Other Assets 271,813             263,474             420,714              
18       Total Assets 66,610,356$      60,943,052$      64,025,307$       

Liabilities & Fund Balances

Current Liabilities:

19   Accounts Payable 4,689,937$        4,415,867$        5,364,280$         
20   Accrued Compensation 3,163,388          3,009,609          3,123,812           
21   Interest Payable 714,262             571,410             714,262              
22   Accrued Expenses 304,818             304,923             152,010              
23   Advances From 3rd Parties 1,689,354          1,514,354          950,253              
24   Deferred Tax Revenue 4,677,907          384,885             4,769,308           
25   Current Maturities-LTD 795,004             800,202             1,478,198           
26   Other Liabilities 2,424,868          2,424,868          182,110              
27     Total Current Liabilities 18,459,538$      13,426,118$      16,734,233$       

28 Long Term Debt, net current portion 37,820,460$      37,918,367$      38,393,797$        

29 Fund Balances:

30   Unrestricted 6,244,842$        6,697,026$        6,823,472$          

31   Restricted 4,085,516          2,901,541          2,073,805           
32     Total Fund Balances 10,330,358$      9,598,567$        8,897,277$         
33 Total Liabilities & Fund Balances 66,610,356$      60,943,052$      64,025,307$       

Sonoma Valley Health Care District

Balance Sheet

For The Period Ended

As of June 30, 2013



Sonoma Valley Hospital 
Statistical  Analysis

FY 2013

ACTUAL BUDGET

Jun-13 Jun-13 May-13 Apr-13 Mar-13 Feb-13 Jan-13 Dec-12 Nov-12 Oct-12 Sep-12 Aug-12 Jul-12 Jun-12 May-12

Statistics

Acute

   Acute Patient Days 323 446 396 315 447 449 613 456 351 443 347 432 396 354 363

   Acute Discharges 87 126 99 88 122 128 159 117 104 121 109 117 115 107 116

SNF Days 470 589 638 589 725 678 707 671 638 576 617 682 633 688 729

HHA Visits 990 1,020 1,140 1,101 1,067 1,001 1,076 940 921 1,043 802 1,052 937 941 989

Emergency Room Visits 716 762 795 729 757 710 852 793 732 801 788 884 838 810 863

Gross Outpatient Revenue   (000's) $8,353 $8,441 $9,289 $8,906 $8,167 $8,065 $8,805 $8,302 $8,485 $8,935 $8,151 $9,014 $8,153 $7,667 $8,120

Equivalent Patient Days 1,892 2,301 2,266 2,237 2,422 2,314 2,594 2,353 2,213 2,214 2,202 2,509 2,202 2,355 2,362

Births 8 16 15 12 16 11 19 13 14 9 11 16 9 15 6

Surgical Cases - Inpatient 30 38 42 25 35 33 38 32 35 37 37 40 41 28 37

Surgical Cases - Outpatient 86 91 105 90 96 80 78 94 95 91 97 98 82 92 99

Total Surgical Cases 116 129 147 115 131 113 116 126 130 128 134 138 123 120 136

Medicare Case Mix Index 1.58 1.40 1.62 1.50 1.55 1.36 1.52 1.51 1.47 1.29 1.49 1.40 1.61 1.50 1.64

Income Statement

Net Revenue (000's) 3,821 3,901 3,324 3,986 3,945 3,938 4,006 4,085 3,679 3,963 3,707 3,926 3,822 4,832 3,741

Operating Expenses (000's) 4,694 4,357 4,529 4,407 4,577 4,353 4,632 4,482 4,235 4,407 4,221 4,312 4,257 5,278 4,686

Net Income (000's) 732 63 (651) 149 251 114 237 134 174 67 65 127 31 889 343

Productivity

Total Operating Expense Per Equivalent Patient Day $2,481 $1,893 $1,999 $1,970 $1,890 $1,881 $1,786 $1,905 $1,914 $1,990 $1,917 $1,719 $1,933 $2,241 $1,984

Productive FTEs 277 286 282 286 291 290 284 284 266 281 291 284 281 285 285

Non-Productive FTE's 40 30 28 34 31 32 37 33 47 36 39 37 41 34 28

Total FTEs 317 316 311 320 322 322 321 317 313 316 330 321 322 318 313

FTEs per Adjusted Occupied Bed 4.25 4.25 4.29 4.12 3.77 3.84 4.24 4.24 4.43 4.37 3.97 4.53 4.05 4.11

Balance Sheet

Days of Expense In General Operating Cash 7 12 17 15 9 9 14 7 12 14 13 14 13 15

Net Days of Revenue in AR 62 59 55 51 53 51 53 52 53 50 50 50 48 47

ACTUAL



Days in A/R Dec'12 Jan'13 Feb'13 Mar'13 Apr'13 May'13 Jun'13

Actual days in A/R 52.6 51.0 52.7 51.0 54.2 58.8 62.1

Goal 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0

Days in A/P Dec'12 Jan'13 Feb'13 Mar'13 Apr'13 May'13 Jun'13
Actual days in 

Vendor A/P 93.8 65.4 70.3 55.9 54.7 54.3 51.2

Goal 60.0 60.0 60.0 60.0 60.0 60.0 60.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

50.0

55.0

60.0

65.0

70.0

Dec'12 Jan'13 Feb'13 Mar'13 Apr'13 May'13 Jun'13

D
ay

s

Days Revenue  in Net Accounts Receivable
FY 2013

Goal Actual Net Days

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

Dec'12 Jan'13 Feb'13 Mar'13 Apr'13 May'13 Jun'13

D
ay

s

Days in Vendor Accounts Payable
FY 2013

Goal Actual days in Vendor A/P



Sonoma Valley Hospital
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period Ended

Current Month Year To Date
Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss) 732,280             1,431,559          

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided
  by operating activities:
    Depreciation and amortization (2,278,651)         (316,623)            

    Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:

      (Increase)/Decrease Patient accounts receivable  - net (272,085)            (2,118,227)         

      (Increase)/Decrease Other receivables and other assets (4,173,509)         3,190,465          

      (Increase)/Decrease Prepaid expenses 137,863             (504,932)            

      (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 86,557               69,503               

      (Decrease)/Increase in Deferred revenues 3,452,115          (368,207)            

      (Decrease)/Increase in Accounts payable, accrued expenses 582,993             1,762,323          

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by operating activities (1,732,437)         3,145,861          

Investing Activities
Net Purchases of property, plant and equipment - Other Fixed Assets 3,537,799          (26,082,380)      

Net Purchases of property, plant and equipment - GO Bond Purchases (5,320,193)         10,951,184        

Net Proceeds and Distributions from investments -                      36,839               

Net Book Value of Assets Disposed -                      (1,462)                

Change in Restricted Funds -                      -                      

Change in Limited Use Cash 2,788,539          12,390,623        

(Payment)/Refund of Deposits

Net cash Provided/(Used) by investing activities 1,006,145          (2,705,196)         

Financing Activities
Proceeds (Repayments) from Borrowings - Banks & Carriers (103,105)            (1,256,531)         

Proceeds (Repayments) from Borrowings - Other

Net Intercompany Borrowings/(Repayments)

Change in Post Retirement Obligations & Other Net Assets -                      -                      

Net Equity Transfers to related entities (Cash and Non-Cash)

Net cash Provided/(Used) by financing activities (103,105)            (1,256,531)         

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (829,397)            (815,866)            

Cash and Equivalents at beginning of period 1,804,380          1,790,849          

Cash and Equivalents at June 30, 2013 974,983             974,983             



 
10. 

 
 

JUNE 2013 
ADMINISTATIVE 

REPORT 



1 

 
 
 
To:  Sonoma Valley Healthcare District Board of Directors 
From:  Kelly Mather 
Date:  7/25/13 
Subject: Administrative Report 

 

Summary:  Our business has changed significantly in this fiscal year.  For example:  Quality is improving 
through technology as medication errors have reduced dramatically with the Electronic Health Record.  
Quality is evident through rapid adoption of best practices such as our new anemia clinic which reduces 
costly blood transfusions, associated risks and increases patient health.  The United States had the 
lowest birth rate in history in June, 2013 and OB programs are suffering.  Home Care is growing much 
faster than expected in our market and telemedicine or tele-monitoring is a standard practice now.  
Physicians are partnering with the hospital and taking the lead to achieve the triple aim of affordable, 
quality and lower cost care.  Inpatient discharges significantly decreased and more patients have 
outpatient status or are going home.  Billing has become an art form as insurance companies and our 
government makes it more and more difficult to “justify” payment.    Capitation and risk arrangements 
are becoming the norm in healthcare.  SVH has done an outstanding job managing through this change. 

 Leadership and Organizational Results (Dashboard) 

As you can see from the June dashboard, our results in patient satisfaction has experienced a slight 
improvement and we ended the year at goal.  We also met our goal in quality outcomes and staff 
satisfaction for the fiscal year 2013.  Without prior year adjustments, we ended the year ahead of 
budget.  We have ended the year at a net income of $1,327,946 with contributions and a loss of 
$618,860 without contributions.  Outpatient gross revenue increased by $7 million over the prior year.   
Inpatient discharges decreased by 11% over prior year. Skilled nursing days were higher than the prior 
year.  Community outreach was evident and seems to have helped improve our reputation and support.  
 
New Wing Construction & Fundraising 
The construction project is on budget and on time.  The 2nd floor medical surgical unit move is complete 
and our patients are finally staying in nice, comfortable rooms.  We continue to work with the 
community leaders to raise $11 million for this project to avoid any debt for the new building and we 
believe we can hit our goal by September.  The community wide capital campaign starts in August.  The 
New Wing community opening is Saturday, November 9th

 
. 

Strategic Planning & Marketing 
The marketing and growth plan for FY 2014 will be presented at the August medical staff and the 
September board meeting.  The main focus this fall will be to “re-introduce the hospital” to the 
community this fall with the new wing.  We have a great number of physician specialists now coming to 
Sonoma and they will be introduced to the community with more of a splash this September.  A MAJOR 
push to ask employers in the district to offer Western Health Advantage in addition to Kaiser is 
underway.   



2 

   

                JUNE 2013  
DASHBOARD 

    
ERFRMANCE GOAL  OBJECTIVE  METRIC  ACTUAL RESULT GOAL LEVEL  
Service Excellence 

 
High In-Patient 

Satisfaction  
Press Ganey percentile 

ranking of current 
mean score 

Inpatient  
86.5 mean at 50th 
percentile in AHA 

region 9 

>70th = 5 (stretch) 
>60th = 4  
>50th = 3 (Goal)  
>40th = 2  
<40th=1  

 High Out-Patient 
Satisfaction 

Press Ganey monthly 
mean score 

Outpatient 92.7% 
Surgery 92.6 %  

Emergency 88.9% 

>93%  = 5 (stretch)  
>92%=4  
>91% =3 (Goal) 
>90%=2  
<90%=1 

Quality 

 
Excellent Clinical 

Outcomes  
Value Based 

Purchasing Clinical 
Score 

100% for 7 
months of the last 

12 

100% for 12 mos= 5  
100% 6/12 mos=4  
100% 3/12 mos =3  
>90%=2  
<80%=1  

People 

 
Highly Engaged and 

Satisfied Staff 
Press Ganey percentile 

ranking of current 
mean score  

 2012 77% mean 
score at 80th

>70

 
percentile   

th

>65th=4  
 = 5 (stretch)  

>60th=3 (Goal)  
>55th=2  
<55th =1  

Finance 

 
Financial Viability  YTD EBIDA 

 
0% 

(before restricted 
contributions 

without prior year) 

>10% (stretch)  
>9%=4  
>8% (Goal)  
<7%=2  
<6%=1  

Efficiency and 
Financial 

Management  

  FY 2013 Budgeted 
Expenses 

$53,124,099  
(actual)  

$52,484,254 
(budget)  

<2%  =5 (stretch)  
<1% = 4  
<Budget=3 (Goal)  
>1% =2  
>2% = 1  

Growth  

 
Inpatient Volumes  1% increase (acute 

discharges over prior year ) 
1366 YTD FY20 13 
1526 YTD FY 2012 

 
>2% (stretch) (Outpt) 
>1%=4  
>0% (Goal)  
<0%=2  
<1%=1 (Inpatient) 

Outpatient Volumes  2% increase (gross 
outpatient revenue over 

prior year)  
$103 million YTD 
$94 million in 2012 

Community  

 
Community Benefit 

Hours 
Hours of time spent on 
community benefit 
activities 

1844 hours  >1000 = 5 
>800 = 4 
>600 = 3 
>400 =  
>200 = 1 

 



3 

 
 
 

 
 
 

MEASUREMENT  Goal 
FY 

2013 

Jul 
2012 

Aug 
2012 

Sep 
2012 

Oct 
2012 

Nov 
2012 

Dec 
2012 

 

Jan 
2013 

Feb 
2013 

Mar 
2013 

 

Apr 
2013 

May 
2013 

Jun 
2013 

 

Inpatient Satisfaction >86% 86.3 85.6 85.2 84.2 88.8 88.1 86.9 86.6 87.1 86.5 86.1 86.5 

Outpatient Satisfaction >92% 91. 94.2 94.4 92 93.7 91.7 94 93.5 91.6 92.8 91.8 92.7 

Surgery Satisfaction >92% 90.2 91.9 90.8 93.8 91.9 87.5 94.5 93.7 92.9 92.8 92.0 92.6 

Emergency Satisfaction >85% 87.3 88.2 82.5 84.5 87.2 90.1 90.7 89.4 88.8 89.1 89.5 88.9 

Value Based Purchasing 
Clinical Score 

>75 100 90 90 91 91 100 100 100 100 100 90 100 

Staff Satisfaction 75% 75 75 75 75 75 75 77 77 77 77 77 77 

Turnover <12% 7.9 7.9 7.6 7.6 7.6 8.6 8.6 8.6 8.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 

EBIDA >8% 9 9 8 8 7 7 8 8 8 9 0 8 

Net Revenues >3.9m 3.83 3.98 3.7 3.96 3.7 4.09 4.3 3.9 4.2 3.9 3.3 3.8 

Expense Management <4.3m 4.2 4.3 4.2 4.4 4.4 4.5 4.3 4.3 4.5 4.4 4.5 4.7 

Net Income >50 29 125 65 55 174 90 219 61 114 91 -651 732 

Days Cash on Hand >35 16 13 14 12 7 14 9 9 15 17 12 7 

A/R Days <55 50 50 50 53 52 53 51 53 51 55 56 62 

Total FTE’s <321 322 321 330 316 313 317 321 322 322 320 311 317 

FTEs/AOB <4.5 4.53 4.53 4.37 4.43 4.24 4.24 3.84 3.7 4.12 4.29 4.25 4.25 

Inpatient Discharges >148 115 117 109 121 104 117 159 128 122 88 99 87 

Outpatient Revenue >$7.5m 8.1 9.0 8.1 8.9 8.5 8.3 8.8 8.0 8.1 8.9 9.3 8.3 

Surgeries >130 123 138 97 128 130 126 116 113 131 115 147 116 

Home Health >900 937 1052 802 1043 921 940 1076 1001 1067 1101 1140 990 

Births >15 9 16 11 9 14 13 19 11 16 12 15 8 

SNF days >630 633 682 617 576 638 671 707 678 725 589 638 470 

MRI >120 84 95 82 130 99 100 83 82 107 125 104 106 

Cardiology (Echos) >70 78 56 74 72 67 75 86 68 74 70 91 73 

Laboratory >12.5 12.6 12.9 11.7 13.7 12.2 11.9 14.2 11.8 12.2 11.9 12.4 10.7 

Radiology >850 892 876 811 931 819 811 940 902 900 829 915 828 

Rehab >2587 2612 2798 2455 2471 2175 2051 2502 2526 2690 2771 2736 2657 

CT >356 304 326 281 327 295 279 345 324 277 328 272 301 

ER >775 838 823 788 801 732 741 852 804 757 729 795 716 

Mammography >475 404 487 472 629 556 475 431 431 494 481 545 431 

Ultrasound >300 312 352 275 336 287 290 348 295 298 343 302 292 

Occupational Health >550 585 538 465   521 451 405 538 574 521 523 556 494 

FY 2012 TRENDED RESULTS 
 

    



 
11. 

 
 

OFFICER AND 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 



 
 

Meeting Date:  August 1, 2013 

Prepared by:   Bill Boerum, Board Chair 

Agenda Item Title:  Annual Meeting: Assn. Calif. Healthcare Districts (ACHD) 
Recommendation:  Receive Report 

During May 22-24, the Association of California Health Care Districts conducted its Annual Meeting in 
Torrey Pines at the Hilton Hotel. ACHD continued its 2013 theme of “Turning the Tide,” an apt title for 
the turnaround displayed by this organization during the past two years.  

As such, the conference itself recorded an increase over last year in registrant attendance and as well in 
participation by the number of districts. (This continued the improvement experienced at its Legislative 
Conference, April 8 & 9 in Sacramento - which I also attended - where the registration was at an all-time 
high.) Attendance at the annual meeting by Northern California district and hospital colleagues (with 
whom I had the chance to chat) included two from Marin Healthcare (the Board Chair, Jennifer Rienks 
and Vice Chair, Hank Simmonds), four from Healdsburg (Board Chair, E.J. Neil, Secretary, Bill 
Esselstein as well as new CEO, Nancy Schmid and Interim CEO, George Protos), and one from Southern 
Humboldt (CEO Harry Jasper). Additionally as I did during Leg Day, I had the opportunity for several 
informative discussions with Colin Coffey of the Archer Norris firm, our Counsel as well as that for the 
Marin District.  

The general session and workshop sessions were very well designed and delivered by recognized experts 
as well district panelists, and were very informative. Given that this is a California statewide organization 
of and conference for health care districts – our direct industry peers - I recommend attendance in the 
future by other board members of our District. The interactions and questions during sessions as well as 
informal networking will broaden the context and knowledge of directly relevant issues and challenges 
for any of us – including our CEO. 

The meeting also included the election of new directors and officers. Kathleen M. Kane of Sequoia 
Healthcare was succeeded as chair (after two years of service) by Dr. Don Parazo of the Antelope Valley 
District. I was impressed (as I was during Leg Day) by the performance and hospitality of ACHD 
officers, Dave McGhee, CEO and Tom Petersen, EVP as well as the highly professional staff they have 
recruited. 

As your nominee in March for a position on the ACHD Board of Directors, I was fortunate to have been 
elected by the Board in April to fill a vacancy before the annual meeting, and therefore attended in the 
capacity of a Director saving our District the cost of transportation and one night in the hotel. 



 
 

Meeting Date:  August 1, 2013 

Prepared by:   Bill Boerum, Board Chair 

Agenda Item Title:  Attendance at ACHD Board Meeting – June 28 
Recommendation:  Receive Report 

This was the next of ACHD’s regular meetings its Board of Directors and was held at the Marriott 
Burbank Airport Hotel. In addition to the regular board meeting scheduled for Friday, June 28, I made a 
point - in my capacity as a relatively new member of the Board – to take an extra day – Thursday, June 27 
- to attend meetings of the Finance Committee and the Advocacy Committee scheduled the day before. 

The Board received and approved the fiscal year financials as well as next year’s budget along with the 
reports of its committees. The organization has been restored to financial viability and is funded to a large 
extent by the proceeds of the successful operations of its sister enterprise, the ALPHA Fund  

Members of the ACHD Board also serve as Directors of the ALPHA Fund, a worker’s compensation 
company with health care districts and other special districts and other entities as clients. Overall, given 
the very good claims experience of almost of the insured entities (now exceeding 80 organizations); the 
financial results of ALPHA have continued to improve in every recent year in every category. Currently 
the Fund’s investment portfolio exceeds $100 million.  

Though our District finds it convenient and worthwhile (given our very low claims experience) to 
continue to be “self-insured,” I will take the opportunity to query our Administration as to its evaluation 
of what I understand to be a recent bid by ALPHA to provide coverage.  

The Board also received the results of the performance appraisals and compensation reviews of the CEO 
and the EVP.   

It came to my attention during both the ACHD Board meeting during the Annual Meeting and more so at 
this session, that ACHD just has launched two member benefit capabilities which may be of use to our 
District Board: a CEO performance assessment tool and a Board self-assessment tool, each of which - 
essentially software applications - includes automated features. I will introduce them through our normal 
board committee processes for consideration.  

Again, I see that ACDH merits more attention for relevancy than it has been given in prior years.  

As a member of the ACHD Board my transportation and lodging expenses are covered at no cost to our 
District. Additionally, I receive a $200 fee for serving.  

The next meeting of the ACHD Board of Directors will be during its annual retreat in October. 



                     

 

 

 

Meeting Date: August 1, 2013  

Prepared by: Kevin Carruth, Governance Committee Chair 
   Peter Hohorst, Governance Committee Member 

Agenda Item Title:  Discussion of District Policy on Community Funding and Charitable 
Giving  

Recommendation: 

The Board shall discuss the issue and give general guidance to the Governance 
Committee to develop a draft policy for Board action.  The issues for Board discussion 
include, but are not necessarily limited to: 

1. How should decisions about such funding be made—by the Board, delegated to 
the CEO by the Board, some combination of the two? 

2. What criteria should be used to approve/disapprove requests for funding? 
3. Regardless of whether the Board or the CEO is making the decision, before 

approving a request there shall be written justification containing the following: 
a. The name of the community organization,  
b. The event or activity to be financially supported,  
c. The amount requested, 
d. How such support benefits the Mission of the District, and  
e. How District funding for this project fits the District’s Mission, the Board 

approved policy, and the Hospital procedures.  
Is there additional information needed before making a decision? 

4. If authority for these decisions is delegated to the CEO how shall the Board and 
public know when, to whom, and how much community funding is provided, as 
well as any constraints on the funding? 

5. If the District receives tickets to events and they are provided to Board members 
or employees, how shall this information be tracked and publicly reported. 

Background: 

In March 2012 the Bureau of State Audits released its audit of the Salinas Valley 
Memorial Health Care District.  That audit was entitled Salinas Valley Memorial 
Healthcare System -- Increased Transparency and Stronger Controls Are Necessary as 
It Focuses on Improving Its Financial Situation. (The audit can be found at 



http://www.bsa.ca.gov/pdfs/reports/2011-113.pdf)   This issue was one of the items 
specifically addressed in that audit.  
  
The California Constitution prohibits public agencies from making gifts of public funds.  
Currently the District does not have a policy or written procedures to ensure that it 
complies with this requirement when making decisions about providing funds to 
community programs. As a public agency managing public funds, the District must 
ensure that its charitable donations and sponsorships (community funding) further the 
specific public purposes for which the District was created. Our District’s Mission is, “

 

To 
restore, maintain and improve the health of everyone in our community.” Without a 
Board policy and Hospital procedures to ensure that the District’s and Hospital’s 
community funding furthers its public purposes, it risks making or appearing to make 
gifts of public funds.  

It is clearly within the purview of the District to authorize funding to other organizations 
which further the District’s public purposes.  

The District policy and procedures shall track the disposition to its Board Members 
and/or employees of event tickets or anything else it receives of value from entities to 
which it provides community funding, so that it can meet applicable state and District 
Conflict of Interest reporting requirements. When the District Board or employees 
receive such tickets to events from the District or the Hospital, the tickets could be 
considered either income or gifts.   State regulations require the District to publicly 
disclose who receives the tickets. If the tickets are considered gifts, they may also be 
economic interests that could prohibit the Board or Hospital decision makers who 
receive them from making decisions involving the entities that provided the gifts, should 
that occasion arise.  

The intent is that this Board Policy, when followed with Hospital procedures to 
implement the policy, should fully implement the recommendations made in that audit 
report on this issue. 
 

Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
The Board and the District will still not have a policy addressing this issue. There have 
been at least two such requests in the past year. 
 
Financial Impact:   
None. 
 
Selection Process and Contract History:   
None. 
 
Board Committee: 



The GC unanimously recommends discussion and guidance on the development of the 
draft policy. 
 
Attachment: 
None. 



 
 
Insert the Logo 

 
Meeting Date: August 1, 2013 
 
Prepared by: Kevin Carruth, Chair, Governance Committee 
Peter Hohorst, Governance Committee 
 
Agenda Item Title: Suggested Amendments to Board Policy -- Sonoma Valley 
Health Care District, Board Member and Board Chairperson 
Legal Duties, Roles and Responsibilities and Limits on 
Power and Authority 
 
Recommendation: 
The Board adopt the suggested amendments to the policy. 
 
Background and Reasoning: 
At the May Board meeting there was a discussion that addressed areas for 
improvement in the way the Board was governing itself, and in the roles and 
responsibilities of the Board Chair and the Board Members. Based on that discussion 
and those suggestions the GC initiated a review of the policy and has suggested 
amendments. At the June Board meeting suggested amendments were presented for 
discussion only and were to be brought back in July for Board Action.  The suggested changes 
in June are in red and the additional changes since then are also in red but also underlined.  
The principle change since the June meeting is the addition of the very last paragraph. 
 
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
The policy will stand as originally approved without the benefit of improvement. 
 
Financial Impact:  
None. 
 
Selection Process and Contract History:  
Not applicable. 
 
Board Committee: 
The GC will take Board feedback and amend the draft policy for action at the July Board 
meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
Suggested amendments to the Sonoma Valley Health Care District, Board Member and 
Board Chairperson Legal Duties, Roles and Responsibilities and Limits on Power and 
Authority 
  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Left



Sonoma Valley Health Care District 
Board Member and Board Chairperson 

Legal Duties, Roles and Responsibilities 
And 

Limits on Power and Authority 
---------- 

 
Board Responsibilities 

 
Legal Duties 
The Board has three legal duties: 

A duty of obedience to the charitable purpose of the organization, a duty 
that should be demonstrable in all the Board’s decisions. 
A duty of loyalty, to act based on best interests of the organization and the 
wider community it serves, not the narrow interests of an individual or 
stakeholder group 
A duty of care, to be diligent in carrying out the work of the Board by 
preparing for meetings, attending faithfully, participating in discussions, 
asking questions, making sound and independent business judgments, and 
seeking independent opinions when necessary. 

 
Roles 
The role of the Board is to govern, not manage, the organization. Board work involves three 
main roles with respect to five primary responsibilities: 

Policy Formulation 
Specify and convey Board expectations, directives and constraints 
Approve and periodically review major policies affecting the District, Hospital and the 
operation of the Board. 
Decision Making 
Choose among alternatives regarding matters requiring Board attention and input. 
Oversight 
Monitor and assess key organizational process and outcomes. 

 
Responsibilities 
The Board has five primary responsibilities: 

Strategic Direction  
Formulate the District’s ends, its vision, and key goals, and ensure that management 
strategies are aligned;  
Review and approve the District’s Mission, Vision, Values and Annual Strategic Plan 
and updates; 
Review and approve major transactions and significant new programs and services; 
and  
Monitor organizational performance against goals. 
Executive Performance 
Ensure high levels of executive performance; 
Select, support, advise, and set policy for the CEO; and 



Establish and approve annual performance expectations and criteria, evaluate, and 
determine annual compensation including benefits and bonus, and determine 
retention or termination of the CEO. 
Quality 
Ensure the Hospital provides high quality patient care and patient experiences; 
Review recommendations from the Medical Staff and approve the credentialing of 
physicians and other medical professionals; and 
Establish quality goals, review the Hospital’s means and methods of measuring 
quality patient care and patient experiences and the results, and take corrective 
action when necessary. 
Finances 

 Ensure the District’s financial health; 
Establish the financial goals, develop the financial indicators, monitor financial 
performance, and take corrective action when necessary;  
Approve the annual budget in alignment with the Strategic Plan and key financial 
objectives; and 
Ensure the necessary financial controls are in place. 

 Board Effectiveness and Efficiency 
Ensure the Board is effective and efficient, focused on its roles and responsibilities. 

 
Board Chairperson Responsibilities  

Leadership 
Guide and direct the governance process, centering the work of the Board on its 
legal duties, roles, and responsibilities, and forward facing issues. 
Annual Work Plan and Board Calendar 
Establish an annual Board work plan and a Board calendar for the calendar year.  
The Board calendar shall include all Regular and Special Board meetings, Hospital 
and Foundation events usually attended by the Board members, and all other annual 
activities. 
Agendas 
Establish agendas for Board meetings, in collaboration with the CEO.  Focus the 
discussion/action portion of the agendas on forward facing issues dealing via policy 
formulation, decision making and oversight.  Place all non-action items, other than 
the consent calendar, at the end of the agenda.  Move issues of interest to the public 
to the top of the meeting agenda.   
Meeting Management 
Preside over Board meetings in a manner that encourages participation and 
information sharing while moving the Board toward timely closure and prudent 
decision-making.  Focus the discussion on forward facing issues dealing via  policy 
formulation, decision making and oversight.  Facilitate while not dominating 
discussions to lead to Board action.  Start and end meetings on time.  Attend each 
meeting in its entirety.  Move issues of interest to the public to the top of the meeting 
agenda.   
Committee Direction 
Work with committee chairpersons to align the work of Board committees annual 
work plans with the Board’s annual work plan, District’s Strategic Plan, including its 
vision and goals. 
CEO Relationship 



Serve as the Board’s central point of official communication with the CEO. Develop a 
positive, collaborative relationship with the CEO, including acting as a sounding 
board for the CEO on emerging issues and alternative courses of action; and 
stay up-to-date about the organization and determines when an issue needs to be 
brought to the attention of the full Board or a committee. 
CEO Performance Appraisal 
Lead the processes of CEO goal-setting, performance evaluation and compensation 
review, consistent with Board policy. 
Board Conduct 
Set a high standard for Board conduct by modeling, articulating and upholding rules 
of conduct set out in board bylaws and policies. Intervene when necessary in 
instances involving breaches of conflict-of-interest, confidentiality and other Board 
policies. 
Board Learning and Development 
Lead the development of the Board’s knowledge and capabilities by playing a central 
role in orientation of new Board members, mentoring and ensuring continuing 
education for the entire Board. 
Succession Planning 
Participate in the recruitment of new Board and Board committee members. 
Self-evaluation 
Provide for an effective, objective Board self-evaluation process and supports 
implementation of recommendations for improvement; and 
Seek feedback on his or her performance as Chairperson. 
 

Board Member Responsibilities 
 

Citizenship 

1. Attend 90 percent of Regularly Scheduled Board meetings each calendar year. 
2. Attend 70 percent of Special Board meetings each calendar year. 
3. Attend 80 percent of Regularly Scheduled meetings of Board committees on 

which they serve. 
4. Attend the annual Board retreat(s) and Board training conference(s). 
5. Fulfill their fiduciary duty of loyalty, putting the interests of the District ahead of 

their own. 
6. Maintain confidentiality regarding all matters that demand it, including but not 

limited to Closed Sessions. 
7. Do nothing that would discredit the organization. 

 
Performance 

1. Arrive at Board and committee meetings on time and do not leave early. 
2. Serve as a member of at least two one Board committee.s 
3. Carefully review Board and committee agenda packages and come to the 

Board and committee meetings prepared. 
4. Actively participate (by sharing ideas, opinions, observations, perspectives, 

expertise and experience) in Board and committee meeting deliberations and 
discussions. 



5. Listen to and respect the opinions and perspectives of the other members 
and do not dominate the discussion. 

6. Be willing to express a dissenting opinion and vote no when the need arises. 
7. Fully support the Board’s policies and decisions once they have been 

implemented. 
8. Serve as advocates of the organization District and the Hospital in their 

dealing with other organizations, groups, and individuals. 
 

Limits on Power and Authority 
 
The Board acts only collectively, never individually.  Individual Board members have 
absolutely no power: Board authority derives from the Board as a whole.  The Board Chair, 
Board Officers, and Board Committee Chairs, have limited individual powers only as 
specifically established in the District Bylaws, Board Policy, Board Resolutions or other 
specific Board action. 
 
When the Board Chair and/or members have reason to believe, in settings other than Board 
meetings, that others may believe they are speaking on behalf of or representing the Board, 
when in fact they are not, they should advise that person or group that they are in fact 
speaking as an individual and are not representing the Board.  While the Board Chair and/or 
members cannot control how others perceive their them or their comments, this point is 
important, and Board members should error on the side of caution. 
 



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:  August 1, 2013 

Prepared by:  Peter Hohorst, Board Member 

Agenda Item Title:  Contracting Policy for Materials and Services 

 
Recommendations: 
That the Board review the attached Contracting Policy for Materials and Services  
 
Background: 
During the summer of 2012, legal council reviewed the contracting authority granted to the 
District by the legislature and summarized that information in a report. The report stipulated 
when the Board was required to solicit bids for work to be performed and to award the 
contract to the lowest bidder and when this process was not required. In the report, all 
authority rested with the Board and no procedure was included for delegating some of this 
authority for contracting to the CEO.  
This Policy was based on that report. The Policy delegates some of the authority for contracting 
to the CEO in order to have a workable process.  
In addition to comments on the entire Policy the Governance Committee has three specific 
areas where input from discussion would be helpful. 

1. On contracts which have a life of more than one year, it is good practice to include a 
cancellation clause. The Hospital currently adheres to that practice but there are 
instances where the supplier declines to accept a blanket cancellation clause. For 
example the linen supplier will not accept a cancellation clause during the first three 
years of the contract because of the upfront cost of purchasing the linens and the 
need to amortize this cost. The question: Should all multi-year contracts which do 
not have cancellation clauses require Board approval or should the Board rely on the 
judgment of the CEO (as delegated to staff). 

2. On contracts which are not bid and awarded to the lowest bidder because of an 
emergency situation, the legislature requires that the Board approve the contract. 
An emergency Board meeting to fulfill this requirement is not always practical and 
counsel has agreed that common law provides that the CEO can take action in a 
health and safety emergency and notify the Board after the fact. The Policy provides 
for this and stipulates that the CEO notify the Board via email within 24 hours. This 
wording satisfies the intent of the law but may not be appropriate. It still needs 
review by counsel. 

3. The Policy authorizes the CEO to sign contracts regardless of the dollar amount if the 
contract is included in the budget. The Policy also authorizes the CEO to sign 



2 

contracts that exceed the dollar amount included in the budget if the total amount 
of over budget expense from these contracts is less than $100,000 for the year. The 
policy also stipulates that the CEO still has the responsibility to find operating cost 
savings to offset the over budget approval and maintain cost neutrality. 

4. The Policy envisions that the capital budget will be split into two groups, Small 
Capital Items and Major Capital Items. The CEO would be authorized to sign 
contracts for the Small Capital Items portion of the budget as long as the total dollar 
amount for the Small Capital items does not exceed the budget. The CEO would be 
authorized to sign contracts for the items that are listed in the Major Capital Items, 
but would not be authorized to substitute items that are not on the list without 
Board approval. 

 
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
Technically, the District is not in full compliance with the Health and Safety code with regard to 
contracting. 
 
Financial Impact: 
This Policy does not change the operating budget. It clarifies the procedures for signing 
contracts. 
 
Attachment: 
Board Contracting Policy for Materials and Services 



4636 Grove Street, Sonoma  CA  95476,  707 938-4646 
PETER HOHORST                      

 
July 18, 2013 
 
POLICY AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING PURCHASES OF MATERIALS, 
SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT AND PROCUREMENT OF PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES. 
Purpose: 
It is the intent of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Sonoma Valley Health 
Care District (“District”) to provide an equal opportunity to all qualified and 
responsible parties wishing to participate in the bidding process with respect to 
the District and the Sonoma Valley Hospital (“Hospital
It is the intent of the Board, consistent with the District’s obligations, to obtain the 
best value for all expenditures. 

”).   

It is the intent of the Board to clarify, with this policy, the authority granted to the 
District President and Chief Operating Officer (“CEO”) by the Board with regard 
to District and Hospital purchases and contracts. It is also the intent to clarify the 
authority retained by the Board.  
In all instances where authority is granted to the CEO, it is understood that the 
CEO may in turn delegate this authority to a member of the CEO’s staff. 
Responsibility for adherence to this policy, when the authority is delegated by the 
CEO to a staff member, remains with the CEO,  
Statement of Board Policy: 
Section 1. Scope and Application of the Policy 
1.1  Delegation of Authority 
The Board hereby delegates to the CEO the authority to act on behalf of the 
Board in the implementation of the provisions of this Policy. The Board limits the 
CEO’s contract approval authority as specified in Section 5 [Limit of Authority 
Delegated to the CEO] of this policy 
1.2  Bidding Threshold 
The District, with certain exceptions, as covered in Section 2 [Exceptions to 
Bidding and Lowest Bid Policy], (H&S Code 32132) shall follow the formal 
bidding procedures outlined in Section 3 [Formal Bidding Procedures] for any 
contract exceeding twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) for services, materials 
and supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the District or the Hospital and 
shall award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder. Alternately, the District 
shall reject all bids. 



Bidding is not required for contracts that are excepted under Section 3 and for 
contracts that do not exceed $25,000, but bidding or other suitable procedures 
should be followed to obtain the best value for the District 
1.3  Authority to Make Purchases.   
The CEO is hereby given authority to make all purchases and to execute all 
purchase orders or contracts for the District duly authorized pursuant to this 
Policy.  All purchases and contracts shall be upon written order. 
1.4  Contract File  
The CEO shall keep and maintain written records of all contracts. The contract 
file shall include the method used to select the contractor or service provider, i a 
copy of the request for proposal (RFP) or other form of solicitation, the amount of 
the contract, the expiration date of the contract, and the name of the contractor or 
service provider. When the formal bidding procedure is required, file shall also 
include a copy of the Notice of Bids and the names of all bidders and their 
proposals. 
The contract file for all contracts awarded under the exceptions listed in section 2 
shall include a description of the exception and an explanation of the method 
used to select the contractor or service provider. 
The contract file shall include the names of any employ of the District, or any 
Board member who elected to recuse themselves from the award process 
because of a conflict of interest. 
1.5  Conflict of Interest 
With respect to all contracts covered by this Policy, any practices or procedures 
which might result in unlawful activity shall be prohibited, including practices 
which might result in rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration.  No 
employee of the District may participate in any selection process when such 
employee has a relationship with a person or business entity seeking a contract 
which would subject those employees to the prohibitions in Government Code § 
87100. 
1.6  No Advantage.   
No illegal, unfair, unethical or otherwise improper advantage shall be accorded to 
any bidder by the District, a Board member or an employee of the 
District/Hospital. 
Section 2  Exceptions to Bidding and Lowest Bid Policy 
The District shall not be required to utilize the formal bidding process or to award 
the contract to the lowest bidder to (a) emergency contracts, (b) contracts for 
medical or surgical equipment or supplies, (c) electronic data processing and 
telecommunications goods and services, (d) professional services, (e) energy 
services contracts, or (f) purchases made through a Group Purchasing 
Organization (“GPO”) (H&S Code 32132. b, e). 



Section 2.1 Emergency Contracts. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Board may award contracts for 
more than $25,000, without following the formal bidding and lowest bid policy, if it 
first determines (i) an emergency exists that warrants such expenditure due to 
fire, flood, storm, epidemic or other disaster and (ii) it is necessary to protect 
public health, safety, welfare or property. (H&S Code 32136). In the event that 
the emergency requires immediate action, the CEO may make the determination 
that an emergency condition exists and award a contract without first receiving 
Board approval. The CEO shall inform the Board of the emergency and the 
contract by email within 24 hours and shall review the emergency and the 
contract at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 
Section 2.2 Medical Equipment and Supplies 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the CEO may award contracts for more 
than $25,000 without following the formal bidding and lowest bid policy for 
medical equipment and supplies commonly, necessarily and directly used by or 
under the direction of a physician or surgeon in caring for or treating a patient. 
(H&S Code 32132.a &.d). 
Section 2.3 Electronic Data Processing and Telecommunications Goods 
and Services  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the CEO shall award contracts for more 
than $25,000 without following the formal bidding and lowest bid policy for 
electronic data processing and telecommunications goods and services in based 
on the evaluation of competitive means. (H&S Codes 32132.b, & 32138). 
The CEO shall provide the Board and the Board shall approve the competitive 
means that will be used for all electronic data processing and 
telecommunications goods and services. 
Section 2.4 Energy Services Contract 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the District shall award contracts for 
more than $25,000 energy services contracts for energy conservation, 
cogeneration, and alternate energy supply sources without following the formal 
bidding and lowest bid policy if the contract is in the best interest of the District 
and the contract is made public at a regularly scheduled Board meeting. 
(Government Codes 4217.11 & 4217.12) 
Section 2.5 Group Purchasing Organizations 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the CEO may award contracts that are 
placed through an accredited Group Purchasing Organization (“GPO”) in excess 
of twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000) without following the formal bidding and 
lowest bid policy (Revenue and taxation Code 23704). (H&S Code 32132.e) 
Section 2.6 Professional Services 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the CEO may award contracts for 
professional services in excess of twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000) without 



following the formal bidding and lowest bid policy or the use of competitive 
means, provided such persons are specially trained, experienced and competent 
to perform the special services required and have been selected based on these 
qualifications. (H&S Code 32132.b, Government Code 53060). 
The Policy and Procedures Governing Bidding for Facility Contracts shall be 
followed for the contracts for profession services of architectural, engineering, 
environmental, land surveying, or construction project management firms if the 
work is to be performed in conjunction with an approved facility project. 
Section 3.  Formal Bidding Procedure 
Section 3.1 Bid Packet 
Where formal bidding is required, the CEO shall prepare a bid packet, including a 
notice inviting formal bids (“Notice Inviting Bids

Section 3.2 Notice Inviting Bids 

”).  The packet shall include a 
description of the materials or supplies, scope of services, or work in such detail 
and written with such specificity as may be required to allow all potential bidders 
to understand the need and give a level playing field to all bidders. 

Where formal bidding is required, the CEO shall publish the Notice Inviting Bids 
at least fourteen (14) calendar days, but preferably twenty (20) calendar days, 
before the date of opening the bids.  Notice shall be published at least twice, not 
less than five (5) days apart, in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published in the jurisdiction of the District. (Public Contract Code 22037). 
In addition, the CEO may also publish the Notice Inviting Bids in a trade 
publication as specified in Public Contract Code 22036 and may give such other 
notice as it deems proper. 
Section 3.3 Requirements of Notice Inviting Bids. 
The CEO shall include all of the following in the Notice Inviting Bids:  

a. A description of the item(s) to be bid upon; 
b. The procedure by which potential bidders may obtain electronic copies of 

the Specifications; 
c. The final time and date for receiving and opening of bids (including 

designation of the appropriate District person) (Government Code § 
53068; Public Contract Code §§  4104.5, 22037). If the District elects to 
receive bid electronically, this option must be included in the Notice 
Inviting Bids. 

d. The appropriate District person to receive the bids and the address for that 
person, including an e-mail address. 

e. The date, time and place for opening of bids;  
f. Other matters, if any, that would reasonably enhance the number and 

quality of bids. 
Section 3.4 Submission of Bids. 



The CEO shall accept only written sealed bids from the prospective bidders.  The 
CEO shall date and time stamp all bids upon receipt.  All bids shall remain sealed 
until the date and time set forth for opening the bids in the Notice Inviting Bids.  
Any bid received by the District after the time specified in the Notice Inviting Bids 
shall be returned unopened. (Government Code 53068). Any electronic bids 
received after the time specified shall have their attachments deleted and the 
bidder notified electronically of their rejection. 
Section 3.5 Examination and Evaluation of Bids 
On the date, time and at the location provided in the Notice Inviting Bids, the 
District shall publicly open the sealed bids.  A person designated by the CEO, 
shall attend and officiate over the opening of bids (“Opening

The District reserves the right not to determine the low bidder at the Opening, to 
obtain the opinion of counsel on the legality and sufficiency of all bids, and to 
determine at a later date which bid to accept.  Such determination shall be made 
within sixty (60) days of the Opening or unless a different period of time is 
specified in the Notice Inviting Bids.   

”).  The bids shall be 
made public for bidders and other properly interested parties who may be 
present at the Opening. 

In the event there are two or more identical lowest bids pursuant to any provision 
requiring competitive bidding, the CEO may determine by lot which bid shall be 
accepted. (Government Code 53064) 
Section 3.6 Award of Contract 
When formal bidding is required the CEO shall award the contract to the lowest 
bidder, provided the bidder is responsible as defined by section 3.7 and the bid is 
reasonable and meets the requirements and criteria set forth in the Notice 
Inviting Bids 
Any contract awarded by the District shall be subject to all applicable provisions 
of federal, California and local laws.  In the event of a conflict between any 
contract documents and any applicable law, the law shall prevail. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the District is under no obligation to 
accept the lowest responsible bidder and reserves the right to reject all bids. 
(H&S Code 32132)    
Section 3.7 Responsible Bidder 
a. For purposes of this Policy, “responsible bidder” means a bidder who has 
demonstrated the attribute of trustworthiness and quality during prior service, a 
reputation for reliability and satisfactory service with other clients, sufficient 
financial capacity and the physical capability and the technical and non technical 
expertise in order to perform the contract satisfactorily (Public Contract Code 
1103).   
b. If the CEO determines that the lowest bidder is not responsible, the Board 
may award the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder 



c. If the Board decides to award the contract to a bidder other than the lowest 
bidder pursuant to subparagraph (b), the Board shall first notify the low bidder of 
any evidence, either obtained from third parties or concluded as a result of the 
District’s  investigation, which reflects on such bidder’s responsibility.  The 
District shall afford the low bidder an opportunity to rebut such adverse evidence 
and shall permit such bidder to present evidence that it is qualified.  Such 
opportunity to rebut adverse evidence and to present evidence of qualification 
shall be submitted in writing to the District. 
Section 4. Bid Conditions
All formal bids shall be subject to the following general conditions. 

.   

4.1  Minimum Number of Bids.   
When formal bidding is required the CEO shall consider a minimum of three (3) 
bids whenever possible; however, where the CEO cannot obtain three bids or 
when the CEO decides that time will not permit obtaining three bids, the Board 
may authorize considering less than three bids.  
The District may accept sole source bids for contracts that are exempt from the 
formal bidding policy under section 2. 
4.3  Multiple Bids.   
When bids for multiple items are solicited at the same time, the CEO may accept 
parts of one or more bids (provided the Notice Inviting Bids so indicates) unless 
the bidder has specified to the contrary, in which event the District reserves the 
right to disregard the bid in its entirety. 
4.4  Minor Deviations.   
When formal bidding is required, the CEO, after receiving advice from counsel, 
may waive inconsequential deviations from the specifications in the substance or 
form of bids received. 
Section 5. Limit of Authority Delegated to CEO for Materials and Services 
The CEO may sign a contract for an operating expense, the cost of which has 
been included in the approved (by the Board) operating budget for the current 
fiscal year. The contract may cover a period of up to 5 years. 
The CEO may sign a contract for an operating expense, the cost of which has 
been included in the approved (by the Board) operating budget for the current 
fiscal year, but the contract amount is greater than the amount in the budget, if 
the total dollar amount of contracts exceeding the budgeted amounts is not in 
excess of $100,000 for the year. When a contract is signed that exceeds the 
budgeted amount the CEO should reduce operating costs in other areas to keep 
the impact of the contract “budget neutral.” The contract may cover a period of up 
to 5 years. 
The CEO may approve a contract for a capital expense, if the item meets the 
guidelines for capital projects which were included with the capital budget and 
approved by the Board. 



Schedule Target Actual
MRI relocation 9/26/2012 9/26/2012
Complete New Entrance 9/27/2012 9/27/2012
Start New Building 9/27/2012 9/27/2012
Install Footings 12/31/2012 12/27/2012
Steel Top Out 2/13/2013 2/13/2013
Deck Pour Completion 4/9/2013 3/7/2013
Roof Completion 5/15/2013 5/15/2013

Enclose Building Exterior 7/8/2013 In progress

Interior Wall Close Up 6/28/2013 In progress

Permanent Power 8/23/2013 On Schedule
Substantial Completion 10/28/2013 On Schedule
Final Completion 11/12/2013 On Schedule
Generator On Line 5/31/2013 Not Critical
Chillers On Line 5/13/2013 Complete
Contract Target Actual
Medical Equipment Ongoing Lease

Commissioning Agent 6/15/2013 Complete

Comments

NPC -3 Extention 4/1/2013 NPC-2 Projects complete
Med Equipment coordination Ongoing In progress

PG&E Energize New Wing 8/23/2013 In planning
DIA for South Parking Lot In progress

Generator Install 6/17/2013 Complete

Utility Disruptions Ongoing Ongoing Target Date Completion Date
2 West Patient Rm Upgrades 8/30/2013 In Progress 10/1/2013 In Progress

7/31/2013 In Progress
PG&E Conduit Install 7/15/2013 In Planning 5/15/2013 Complete
Chiller Start Up 5/24/2013 Complete 7/31/2013 In Progress
Generator Start up 7/22/2013 In Planning 8/1/2013 In Progress

7/1/2013 In Progress

Est Dollar Amount

4th Street Light

$12,000

Project Contengency Remaining $301,525

2nd Floor West Projects

Total Approved Budget $43,809,376
Project Contingency $550,487

-$248,962

$10,000
$50,000

Budget

SVH Contingency Project Risks

OTTO Construction Contingency Status.

Potential Project Risk
Project Contingency remaining

Current Commitments to 5-15-13

$894,302
-$256,877
$637,425

Medical equipment coordination In Progress

Sonoma Valley Hospital - Phase 1 - Expansion.
Project Update/ Dashboard  - Increment 1 & 3 Monday, July 15, 2013

In Progress
In Progress

Building connections
OSHPD

In Progress

Critical      or      High Impact Potential Risk /
Unresolved/ 
Medium Impact

On Track

Upcoming Activites
Data Service - Comcast Installation

PBX - Coordination verification

Donor Wall - Plaque Information

Furniture coordination
4th Street Light

Medical Equipment Delivery Schedule

Owner Decisions

Critical Issues

Facility Impacts

Neptune Equipment Relocation

Nurse Call Cabling and Oshpd requirements

2nd Floor West - Nurse Station
Remodel

6/7/2013 OSHPD Approved. Dept
move 7/16.

                           Otto GMP Cash Flow (Inc CO#1-13) including  Spent to Date

Design Build Contingency
Spent to Date

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

Spent to Date

Updated GMP Forecasted
Cash Flow



1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:   August 1, 2013  

Prepared by: Sharon Nevins  

Agenda Item Title: Quality Committee Dashboard/Data Report 2013 

 
Recommendations: 
Approval of the report and recommendation to post to the Hospital webpage  
 
Background: 
Earlier in the year, the Board approved the data set for quarterly reports of the quality and 
patient satisfaction outcomes of Sonoma Valley Hospital.  The Committee is now submitting the 
format for the reports as well as a recommendation to post to the Hospital webpage.  These 
reports will be updated on a quarterly basis and the scope of the reports will be expanded over 
time. 
The only major change that has occurred since the Board approved the data set is that the 
Quality Committee has removed the indicators for the Skilled Nursing Facility, deciding to focus 
exclusively on the Acute and Emergency Departments of the facility to avoid confusion over the 
data. 
 
Consequences of Negative Action/Alternative Actions: 
The Board has approved the creation of this data and negative action/alternative action would 
delay the implementation of this project 
 
Financial Impact: 
none 
 
Attachment: 
 



 

BOARD QUALITY COMMITTEE DASHBOARD 2013
 

The following are quality and patient safety indicators selected by the Board Quality Committee for quarterly reporting as part of the oversight 
mandate for ensuring the organization has an effective quality assurance and performance improvement program (QAPI). 

1. Surgical Services Volumes by Service Fiscal Year 2013 
 

  Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan-Mar Apr-Jun Totals 
SERVICE IP OP IP OP IP OP IP OP  

General 34 35 35 31 32 29 30 48 274 

OBGYN 16 17 14 22 17 16 11 22 135 

Ophthalmology 0 50 0 45 0 45 0 48 188 

Orthopedic 62 107 51 118 55 106 57 101 657 

Pain Management 0 39 0 36 0 37 0 39 151 

Podiatry 1 12 1 16 0 15 3 4 52 

Urology 3 9 3 5 3 3 1 5 32 

Vascular Surgery 0 5 0 3 1 4 0 7 20 

Endoscopy 24 80 13 84 24 66 14 82 387 

Totals 140 354 117 360 132 321 116 356 1896 

 



2. Emergency Department Patient Performance 
 
a. Time from presentation to the ED to time seen by MD based on a sampling of cases. 

Measurement:   Emergency Department Patient Throughput (Lower # is Better)     
Category: Patient Safety             

Definition: Time from arrival in ED to being seen by an MD in minutes (Average)   

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

25.85 26.36       

 

N/A 30 

 

 

b. Time from decision to admit to bed on inpatient unit until patient departure from ED based on a sampling of cases. 
 

Measurement:   Time from admit decision to depart to bed (Lower # is Better)     
Category: Patient Safety             

Definition: Time from decision to admit patient to departure to assigned bed in minutes (Average) 

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

72.37 64.93       

 

N/A 96  

 

  



3. Patient Satisfaction: Quality Patient Experience 
 
Patient satisfaction is measured by the Press Ganey Patient Satisfaction Questionnaire that is mailed to the patient’s home two weeks 
post discharge.   There are many questions on the survey and the hospital has shown a significant improvement over the past two years.   
We chose 3 questions upon which to focus our attention. 
 

Measurement:   Noise Level in and around rooms (Higher # is Better)     
Category: Patient Satisfaction             

Definition: % of Patients responding to Press Ganey Survey who gave a score of 5 (Very Good) 

         

CALENDAR 
YEAR 2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

75.3% 69.1%       

 

N/A 90.00% 

 

         

         

Measurement:   Explanations re: tests and treatments (Higher # is Better)     
Category: Patient Satisfaction             

Definition: % of Patients responding to Press Ganey Survey who gave a score of 5 (Very Good) 

         

CALENDAR 
YEAR 2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

87.1% 85.3%       

 

N/A 90.00% 

 

         
         



Measurement:   Likelihood to recommend SVH to others (Higher # is better)     
Category: Patient Satisfaction             

Definition: % of Patients responding to Press Ganey Survey who gave a score of 5 (Very Good) 

         

CALENDAR 
YEAR 2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

89.6% 90.6%       

 

N/A 90.00% 

 

 

4. Readmissions Rates: Quality Patient Outcomes 
 
Data is captured for patients who return to SVH within 30 days.   The hospital focuses on four specific diagnostic groups as they are 
currently tied to Medicare pay-for-performance. 

 
 

Measurement:   Readmission Rates for Medicare Patients (Lower # is better)     
Category: Quality Patient Outcomes           

Definition: Readmitted to SVH within 30 days - All Diagnosis       

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

8.20% 8.40%     N/A 16.0%  

         
         



Measurement:   Readmission Rates for Medicare Patients (Lower # is better)     
Category: Quality Patient Outcomes           

Definition: Readmitted to SVH within 30 days with Same Diagnosis     

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

2.40% 2.00%    

 

N/A TBD TBD 
 
               

         

Measurement:   Readmission Rates for Medicare Patients (Lower # is better)     
Category: Quality Patient Outcomes           

Definition: Readmitted to SVH within 30 days with AMI (Heart Attack)     

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

6.00% 0.00%    

 

N/A 18.0%  

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         



 

Measurement:   Readmission Rates for Medicare Patients (Lower # is better)     
Category: Quality Patient Outcomes           

Definition: Readmitted to SVH within 30 days with CHF (Congestive Heart Failure)   

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

2.80% 0.00%    

 

N/A 23.0%  
 
 
         
         

Measurement:   Readmission Rates for Medicare Patients (Lower # is better)     
Category: Quality Patient Outcomes           

Definition: Readmitted to SVH within 30 days with PNE (Simple Pneumonia)   

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

8.50% 0.00%    

 

N/A 17.6%  
 
 
 
 
 
 
               

         



Measurement:   Readmission Rates for Medicare Patients (Lower # is better)     
Category: Quality Patient Outcomes           

Definition: Readmitted to SVH within 30 days with COPD (Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease) 

         

CALENDAR YEAR 
2012 

2013          
Q1 

2013          
Q2 

2013          
Q3 

2013          
Q4 

Q                
Change 

YTD           
Trend 

Benchmark 
Goal 

Benchmark 
Perform 

0.00% 16.50%    

 

N/A TBD TBD 
 
 
 

Chart 
Definitions: 

Calendar Year Average of all quarters previous year 
Q Change Change from previous quarter/calendar year 
YTD Trend Change from previous calendar year based on an average of the 

quarterly values this year 
Benchmark goal External standard or internally set benchmark for quality 

performance 
Benchmark Perform Most recent quarter performance against the benchmark goal 
 Red means performance declined or does not meet the 

benchmark goal 
 Green means improved performance or meeting the benchmark 

goal 
 

 

 

 

 



5. Hospital Acquired Infections: Quality Patient Outcomes and Safety 
 
Infections are tracked for 16 different categories of infections are reported in detail only if quarterly or YTD performance does not meet 
the benchmark set and therefore potentially merits clinical and management remedial action.   The following table summarizes those 
infection categories being tracked which are within benchmark. 
 
 

Infection Category Within Benchmark 
Central line associated bloodstream infections  

 

 

Hospital acquired Cdiff infections 
Inpatient, MRSA infections 
VRE bloodstream infections 
Hip surgical site infections 
Knee surgical site infections 
Overall surgical site infections 
Class I SSI rate 
Class II SSI rate 
Total Joint SSI rate 
Ventilator Associated Events 
Hospital acquired Pneumonia 
Inpatient Hospital acquired Catheter associated urinary tract infections 
Home Care associated infections 
MRSA Active Surveillance cultures 
Flash sterilization measurements 

 
 

         
         

         
 


	1 AGENDA 8.1.13
	3
	BoD MINUTES 6.4.13
	BoD MINUTES 6.6.13
	FC MINUTES 5.28.13
	FC MINUTES 6.25.13
	GC MINUTES 5 28 13
	12. BOARD POLICY ON COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND ANNUAL COMMUNITY BENEFITS

	GC MINUTES 6.24.13
	QC MINUTES 5 22 13
	QC MINUTES 6.26.13
	3.E. Board Letter Extension Prof Agreement
	3.E. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  between
	Sonoma Valley Hospital

	I. CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	A. Consultant shall furnish the service set forth and described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A.

	II. TERM
	A. Term of Agreement.
	B. SVH -Termination for Cause.
	C. SVH -Termination for Convenience.
	D. Consultant-Initiated Termination.

	III. GENERAL PROVISIONS
	A. Independent Contractor.
	B. Consultant Hiring.
	C. Subconsultants.
	D. Legal and Regulatory Compliance.
	E. Ownership and Use of Work Product.
	F. Consultant’s Accounting Records.
	G. Conflict of Interest.
	H. Successors and Assigns.
	I. Information Furnished by SVH.

	IV. COMPENSATION
	A. Payment During Term.
	1. Compensation for the scope of work set forth in Exhibit A shall not exceed a maximum of $81,450.00. This maximum compensation may be increased only with the prior written approval of SVH.
	2. All fees shall be computed in accordance with Consultant Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. Each monthly fee shall be for the Labor Compliance Program services rendered during that month.
	3. Payments to Consultant shall be made monthly, subsequent to the receipt by SVH of an invoice
	4. Compensation for services in addition to those described in Exhibit A, if required, shall be negotiated separately. No additional services shall be authorized except by written addendum to Exhibit A signed by Consultant and SVH.

	B. Payment upon Termination.
	1. Termination Pursuant to Section II.B. In the event of termination of this Agreement by SVH pursuant to Section II.B above, SVH shall have the right to withhold monies otherwise payable to Consultant until Consultant’s services under this Agreement ...
	2. Termination Pursuant to Section II.C or II.D. In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section II.C or II.D above, SVH will pay Consultant in full for all services performed, up to and including the effective date of termination. I...
	3. Waiver of Claims. Consultant hereby waives all claims against SVH, whether based on contract or tort, for any special, indirect or incidental damages and loss of anticipated profits on account of any termination of this Agreement by SVH and, as the...


	V. INDEMNIFICATION
	A. With the exception that this Article V shall in no event be construed to require indemnification by Consultant to a greater extent than permitted by the laws and the public policy of the State of California and without in any manner limiting the ri...
	B. The indemnification obligations of Consultant under this Article V (the “Indemnification Obligations”) shall not be limited by the amounts or types of insurance which Consultant is required to carry under this Agreement.  In claims against SVH and/...
	C. The Indemnification Obligations shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, and shall continue until the last to occur of (i) the last day permitted by law for the bringing of any claim or action with respect to which ind...

	VI. Insurance Requirements
	A. Either Comprehensive Form General Liability Insurance (Contractual, products, and completed operations coverage’s included) with a combined single limit of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, or Commercial-Form General Liability Insurance with ...
	1. Each Occurrence $1,000,000
	2. Products Completed, Operations Aggregate $1,000,000
	3. Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000
	4. General Aggregate $2,000,000

	B. Business Automobile Liability insurance for owned, scheduled, no owned, or hired automobiles, with a combined single limit of no less than $1 million per accident.
	C. If the above insurance (subparagraphs VI.A-VI.B) is written on a claims-made basis, it shall be maintained continuously for a period of no less than 3 years after the date of Final Completion of the services authorized pursuant to each Exhibit A ex...
	D. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required and under the Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Safety Act of the State of California, as amended from time to time. Insurance required by this Paragraph VI.E shall be issued by companies (i) that have ...
	E. Consultant, upon the execution of this Agreement, shall furnish SVH with one or more Certificates of Insurance evidencing compliance with this Article VI, including the following requirements:
	1. Provide that coverage cannot be canceled without 30 days advance written notice to SVH.
	2. If insurance policies are canceled for non-payment, SVH reserves the right to maintain policies in effect by continuing to make the policy payments or by obtaining new policies and assessing the costs thereby incurred against Consultant.
	3. The General Liability Insurance policy and the Business Automobile Liability Insurance policy shall name SVH and any other parties requested in writing by SVH as Additional Insureds.


	VII. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS
	A. Nondiscrimination
	1. The nondiscrimination and affirmative action clauses contained in:  Executive Order 11246, as amended, relative to equal opportunity for all persons without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin; the Vocational Rehabilitation Act ...
	2. The utilization of small and minority-owned business concerns clauses contained in: the Small Business Act, as amended; Executive Order 11625; and the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) at 48 CFR Chapter 1, Part 19, Subchapter D, and Part 52, Sub...


	VIII. CONFIDENTIALITY
	A. In performing the Services, Consultant will have access to SVH’s Confidential Information. The term “Confidential Information” includes, without limitation, all information regarding SVH’s business activities, finances, trade secrets, existing and ...
	B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Consultant shall have no obligation with respect to Confidential Information which: (i) is or becomes generally known to the public by any means other than a breach of Consultant’s obligations hereunder; (ii) was prev...
	C. Except as hereafter provided, Consultant shall not, without prior written approval of SVH, use SVH’s name in advertising, publicity, press releases, or other graphic or written materials distributed to prospective customers, third parties, or to ot...
	D. Consultant’s use of SVH’s name without the prior written consent of SVH shall be limited to the placement of a short abstract of the Projects in the standard statement of qualifications that Consultant provides prospective customers; provided, howe...

	IX. Dispute Resolution Procedure.
	A. Intent.
	1. Consultant shall incorporate the provisions of this Article IX into contracts with all of Consultant’s subconsultants so that such consultants shall also be bound to this dispute resolution procedure.
	2. Resolution Procedure. Consultant and SVH shall employ reasonable efforts to resolve any disputes in accordance with the following procedures:
	(A) Special Meeting. SVH or Consultant may call a special meeting for the resolution of disputes.  The meeting shall be held within three (3) working days of a written request for the meeting, which shall specify the nature of the dispute to be resolv...
	(B) Senior Management Meeting. If the dispute has not been resolved within five (5) working days after the special meeting has occurred, then a senior management meeting will be held to attempt to resolve the dispute.  The attendees of this meeting sh...
	(C) Mandatory Mediation. If the dispute has not been resolved within five (5) working days after the senior management meeting has occurred, any party thereto may, at its option, initiate a mediation proceeding which shall be attended by all parties t...
	(D) Settlement. If, as a result of the mediation, a voluntary settlement is reached and the parties agree that such settlement shall be reduced to writing, the mediator shall hereby be deemed appointed and constituted an arbitrator for the sole purpos...
	(E) The proceedings under this Section shall be subject to the California Evidence Code. Further, the parties agree that evidence of anything said or presented, or of any admission made during or in the course of the special meeting, senior management...
	(F) This dispute resolution procedure shall not in any way affect any statutes of limitation relating to any claim, dispute or other matter or question arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof. This dispute resolution procedu...



	X. NOTICES
	A. SVH.
	B. Consultant.

	XI. AUTHORITY OF AGREEMENT
	A. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between SVH and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument sign...
	B. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to be valid and enforceable.
	C. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the laws of California
	D. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between SVH and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument sign...
	E. This Agreement includes the following exhibits attached herewith:

	EXHIBIT B
	CONSULTANT fee SCHEDULE

	3.F. QC P&Ps
	4
	4.Sonoma Co Health Needs
	5
	5 MGH-SVH EXHIBIT A
	6
	6 Option Agree_Lease Easement
	7
	7.1. Board Letter_Deferred Improve Agree
	7.2 deferred improve agree
	7.3 Perf Agree
	7.4. Conditions
	7.5. Exhibit A South Parking Lot Map
	8
	8. Cover Letter CEO Goals
	8. CEO INCENTIVE COMPENSATION GOALS
	9
	9. #0 FC Revised PPT for BOARD June 2013
	Sonoma Valley Hospital�Sonoma Valley Health Care District�  June 30, 2013 Financial Report
	June’s Patient Volumes
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	9. #1 Narrative revised 6-30-13
	9. #2. Income Statement
	9. #3. Balance Sheet
	9. #4. Stats
	9. #5. Days AR_AP graph
	9. #6. Cash Flow
	10
	10. CEO BOARD REPORT AUGUST 2013 (2)
	11
	11.B.i. Charitable and Community Funding
	11.B.iii. Bd Bd Mem Ch roles and respon
	11.B.iii. Board Letter Contracting Policy Materials Services
	11.B.iii. Policy for Materials Services
	UPETER HOHORST

	11.C. Construction Dashboard  7-15-13
	Sheet2

	11.D.i. Cover letter QC Dashboard
	11.D.i. QC DASHBOARD 2013
	ADP4C6.tmp
	/

	ADP4CA.tmp
	/

	ADP4CE.tmp
	/




